
  
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, JULY 24, 2012 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

5:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

June 19, 2012, Regular Meeting 
June 19, 2012, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE JULY 24, 2012 AGENDA  19 
5:35 4  SHERIFF’S OFFICE PROPOSED LEGAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

RENEWAL WITH SMITH, RODGERS & STRICKLAND (SR&S)  
SHERIFF HAGAMAN 21 

5:40 5  HUNGER AND HEALTH COALITION PAVING REQUEST MS. COMPTON FORTUNA 29 
5:45 6  PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS 

A. Proposed NC Rural Center Grant Application 
B. Community Development Block Grant Scattered Site 

Housing Program Matters 
1. 2009 Program Close Out Public Hearing Request 
2. 2012 Program Public Hearing Request 
3. 2012 Program Proposed Committee 

Appointments 

MR. JOE FURMAN  
33 

 
 

51 
51 
53 

5:50 7  TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections 
B. Refunds & Releases  

MR. KELVIN BYRD  
57 
59 

5:55 8  BUDGET AMENDMENTS MS. MARGARET PIERCE 85 
6:00 9  PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE 

COUNTY’S SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE 
MR. J. V. POTTER 87 

7:00 10  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Request to Surplus Property Acquired from the New 

River Service Authority 
B. Boards & Commissions 
C. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
127 

 
131 
137 

7:05 11  PUBLIC COMMENT  151 
8:05 12  BREAK  151 
8:10 13  CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Personnel Matters – G. S. 143.-318.11(a)(6) 

 151 

 8:30 14  ADJOURN   
  



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
June 19, 2012, Regular Meeting 
June 19, 2012, Closed Session 
 
 
  

072412 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, JUNE 19, 2012 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
June 19, 2012, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
    Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
    David Blust, Commissioner 

Jim Deal, Commissioner 
Tim Futrelle, Commissioner 

    Stacy C. Eggers, IV, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 5:32 P.M. 
 
Commissioner Deal opened the meeting with a prayer and Vice-Chairman Gable led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the June 5, 2012, regular meeting and 
closed session minutes. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the June 5, 2012, 
regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Chairman Miller tabled consideration of the June 5, 2012, closed session minutes until after 
closed session to allow time for review of proposed amendments. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the June 19, 2012, agenda. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the June 19, 2012, 
agenda as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

DRAFT 
072412 BCC Meeting

2



ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2013 BUDGET ORDINANCE 
County Manager Geouque presented the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget Ordinance which was as 
originally recommended with the below listed changes as requested by the Board after review 
during the Budget Work Sessions: 
 

Revenues   
Cable TV Franchise Fees increase $10,000 
   

Expenditures   
Board of Elections increase travel and part time salaries  $8,790 
Board of Education increase current capital outlay $18,826 
Recreation, Special Populations increase supplies and travel $850 
Special Allocations 
 

decrease Children’s Playhouse 
decrease WeCAN 

$2,500 
$1,000 

Emergency Services decrease cell allowance $576 
Tax Administration decrease salaries $6,000 
General Administration 
 

decrease Professional Services-Architects   
decrease miscellaneous expenses 

$7,540 
$850 

 

After discussion, the Board agreed, by consensus, to increase the Appalachian District Health 
Department’s budget allocation by $27,056 for FY 2013. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that tax revenues had been conservatively estimated and, 
therefore, could be slightly adjusted to accommodate the increase to the Health Department 
without decreasing allocations elsewhere. 
 
Discussion was held regarding the Watauga Humane Society’s request for their FY 2013 budget 
allocation to be increased from the current proposed amount of $78,000. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to increase the Watauga 
Humane Society’s budget allocation to a total of $100,000 in the County’s FY 2013 budget. 
 

VOTE: Aye-2(Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to increase the Watauga 
County Library’s budget allocation by $25,500 in the County’s FY 2013 budget. 
 

VOTE: Aye-2(Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to add an allocation for the 
Hospitality House in the amount of $11,000 to the County’s FY 2013 budget. 
 

VOTE: Aye-2(Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 

072412 BCC Meeting

3



 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to add both an allocation for 
the Blowing Rock Chamber of Commerce, in the amount of $4,000, and an allocation for the 
Boone Area Chamber of Commerce, in the amount of $10,000, in the County’s FY 2013 budget. 
 

VOTE: Aye-2(Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to increase the Community 
Care Clinic’s budget allocation by to a total of $24,000 in the County’s FY 2013 budget. 
 

VOTE: Aye-2(Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 

 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Blust, moved to adopt the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget Ordinance as amended to include the additional allocation to the Appalachian District 
Health Department, in the amount of $27,056. 
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Blust) 
 Nay-2(Deal, Futrelle) 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to excuse Commissioner Blust, 
who needed to leave the meeting for a prior commitment, at 6:19 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PUBLIC HEARINGS TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT  

A. Proposed Changes to Fire District Boundaries 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to open the public hearing at 
6:20 P.M. to allow citizen comment on the proposed changes to fire district boundaries. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

 
Mr. Joe Furman, Planning and Inspections Director, stated that the public hearing was scheduled 
to allow citizen comments on consideration of extending the Boone Fire Protection Service 
District and transfers of properties from the Stewart Simmons Fire District to the Deep Gap Fire 
District, from the Meat Camp Fire District to the Deep Gap Fire District, and from the Deep Gap 
Fire District to the Meat Camp Fire District.  Mr. Furman shared maps detailing the proposed 
changes.  Meat Camp’s request to increase their tax rate to $0.05 was approved upon adoption of 
the County’s FY 2013 Budget. 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

4



Mr. Furman presented a proposed resolution authorizing the extension of the Boone Fire 
Protection Service District and the transfers of properties within the referenced Fire Districts.   
 
There being no public comment, Chairman Miller declared the public hearing closed at 
6:22 P.M. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to adopt the resolution 
authorizing the extension of the Boone Fire Protection Service District and the transfers of 
properties within the reference fire districts as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to approve the transfers of 
properties from the Stewart Simmons Fire District to the Deep Gap Fire District, from the Meat 
Camp Fire District to the Deep Gap Fire District, and from the Deep Gap Fire District to the 
Meat Camp Fire District as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

B. Proposed Rural Operating Assistance Program (ROAP) Grant Application for 
Transportation Services 

Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to open the public hearing at 
6:23 P.M. to allow citizen comment on Watauga County's Rural Operating Assistance Program 
(ROAP) application. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

 
County governments were the only eligible applicants for ROAP funds of which the submission 
of an annual application was required to receive funds.  AppalCART provides Watauga County 
transportation services and, therefore, AppalCART completes and submits the ROAP application 
on behalf of the County each year. 
 
Mr. Mike Norwood, AppalCART’s Finance Officer, reviewed the application which included the 
following breakdown of the anticipated allocation totaling $133,344: 
 

Elderly & Disabled Transportation Assistance Program (EDTAP) $58,107 
Employment Transportation Assistance Program $11,384 
Rural General Public (RGP) Program $63,853 

 

072412 BCC Meeting

5



There being no public comment, Chairman Miller declared the public hearing closed at 
6:25 P.M. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to approve the submission of 
the FY 2013 Rural Operating Assistance Program (ROAP) grant application and the execution of 
the certified statement as presented by Mr. Norwood. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE LIVESCAN CONTRACT RENEWAL REQUESTS 
Captain Jeff Virginia presented proposed maintenance agreement renewals for two (2) LiveScan 
machines for the Sheriff’s Office.  The units were used for processing criminal requirements and 
non-criminal fingerprints.  The total amount of the contracts was $9,405 and they were to be 
effective July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013.  Funds were budgeted in the proposed FY 2013 
Budget and the agreements were required to be returned by June 30, 2012, to avoid a 10% 
recertification and reimplementation fee. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the LiveScan 
machine maintenance agreements in the total amount of $9,405 as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY’S (TDA) PROPOSED MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING REGARDING ENCROACHMENT ON PINE RUN ROAD 
Mr. Eric Woolridge, Watauga Tourism Development Authority (TDA) Tourism Planner, stated 
that in January 2012 the Watauga County Board of Commissioners and the Watauga County 
Tourism Development Authority Board of Directors authorized TDA staff to apply for a NC 
Recreation Trails Program grant to improve river access along the South Fork New River at Pine 
Run Road and Green Valley Park.  The TDA has since received notification from the NC 
Recreation of a recommendation for grant funding, in the amount of $75,000, provided that an 
encroachment agreement was secured between the County and the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation (NCDOT) for the Pine Run Road access by August 1, 2012.  Mr. Woolridge 
presented NCDOT encroachment agreement documents for consideration. 
 
Mr. Woolridge stated that a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) had not been prepared for 
this project; however, a general MOU between the Tourism Development Authority and County 
could be considered to cover all joint projects. 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

6



Chairman Miller directed County Attorney Eggers to draft a Memorandum of Understanding 
between the County and the Tourism Development Authority, inclusive of all projects, for future 
consideration. 
 
Mr. Woolridge stated that all environmental permits for Pine Run construction had been secured 
and were also pending the approval of the proposed encroachment agreement.  The TDA Board 
of Directors voted in favor of this project at their June 12, 2012, meeting; approved the required 
matching funds for this grant, in the amount of $18,750; and authorized staff to move forward 
with this project. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the encroachment 
agreement with the North Carolina Department of Transportation for the purpose of constructing 
a public river access at the Pine Run Road bridge, contingent upon the Watauga County Tourism 
Development Authority bearing all costs associated with the construction and future maintenance 
of the facility being the responsibility of the Watauga County Tourism Development Authority. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

APPALACHIAN REGIONAL LIBRARY (ARL) INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT REVISIONS 
On February 7, 2012, the Board adopted a revised Interlocal Agreement regarding the 
Appalachian Regional Library which also included the Counties of Wilkes and Ashe. 
 
Ms. Molly Westmoreland with the Appalachian Regional Library stated that both Ashe and 
Wilkes Counties had requested additional changes to the agreement after Watauga County’s 
adoption.  Ms. Westmoreland and County Attorney Eggers reviewed the minor changes as 
follows: 
 
Ms. Westmoreland stated that, in Section 3C, #4, the NCAC code reference was corrected; in 
Section 3C #9, wording was added requesting the ARL forward the library audits to each County 
Finance Department; and the signature pages were amended to include pre-audit statements and 
the names of each individual signature.  
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that, in Section 7B, a reference code was added and a limit of 
liability clause was included in Section 3C #10. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the Interlocal 
Agreement between the Appalachian Regional Library and Ashe, Watauga, and Wilkes Counties 
as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

072412 BCC Meeting

7



PLANNING AND INSPECTION MATTERS 

A.  Request for Acceptance of Civil Penalty Settlement 
Mr. Joe Furman, Planning and Inspections Director, stated that he had received a civil settlement 
in the amount of $2,100 from the owner of Mountain Ridge apartments.  The civil penalties were 
issued for six violations associated with the property. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to accept the $2,100 as 
settlement for the civil penalties associated with the Mountain Ridge apartments.  
 

VOTE: Aye-3(Miller, Gable, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 
 Recused-1(Deal) 

B. Proposed Amendment to High Country Council of Governments Agreement for the 
Provision of Grant Management Assistance for the 2009 Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Scattered Site Housing Rehabilitation Program 

Mr. Furman presented a proposed amendment to the County’s existing administrative contract 
for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds.  The County received “program 
income” in the amount of $19,335.36 due to the sale of a house which had been previously 
rehabilitated by the County using CDBG funds.  The repayment was a condition of the deed of 
trust placed upon the house as required by the CDBG regulations.  
 
The funds will be spent on the County’s only open CDBG project which is a Scattered Site 
Housing project for “emergency repairs” to houses that were on a waiting list. The High Country 
Council of Governments administered the program and will expend the additional program 
income.  
 
All administrative funds budgeted for the Scattered Site Housing project have been disbursed; 
therefore, Mr. Furman recommended setting aside up to 10% of the program income (not to 
exceed $1,933.00) for administration of those funds by the High Country Council of 
Governments.  The remaining provisions of the agreement shall remain in effect. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the amendment 
authorizing High Country Council of Governments to administer the additional program income 
for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Scattered Site Housing Program in an 
amount not to exceed $1,933. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 
 
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

8



C. Proposed Contract for Brookshire Wetlands Project 
Mr. Furman presented a proposed contract, which was prepared by the County Attorney, to 
replace the County’s existing contract with Blue Ridge Development Group, LLC (BRDG) for 
development of a wetlands mitigation bank on the County’s Brookshire property.  The updated 
contract was needed due to the County having been awarded a $65,000 grant from NC Division 
of Water Resources to construct an unpaved greenway on the property.  The grant required a 
$65,000 match, which the County had planned to provide in-kind by utilizing Sanitation 
Department personnel and equipment to construct the greenway.  Both the prior and proposed 
contracts with BRDG provide that BRDG will build the greenway in conjunction with the 
grading needed to construct the wetlands.  The new contract would provide for a paved 
greenway, constructed by BRDG. The County would use the grant funds for materials and/or 
paving, and BRDG’s work would provide the required grant match.   
 
Mr. Furman stated that in order for this plan to work, two (2) things had to occur: 1) approval of 
the wetlands plan by the Army Corps of Engineers, and 2) receiving revised/reissued permits 
from the Town of Boone reflecting the changes in the greenway location which were needed to 
accommodate the construction of the wetlands.  If the changed location will not yield a “no rise” 
(floodway) certification, then the County would have to seek a flood map revision from FEMA, 
which could cost up to $10,000.  However, the expense would provide the County with a paved 
greenway and a wetlands area for the “out-of-pocket” amount of $10,000.   
 
Mr. Furman stated that, in the event that the Corps of Engineers did not approve option 1, BRDG 
planned to exercise its right to cancel the contract.  This would leave the County to build an 
unpaved greenway using the grant funds and County staff and equipment as the in-kind match as 
planned prior to the consideration of the construction of the wetlands. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to replace the existing Blue 
Ridge Development Group, LLC, contract with the contract presented and prepared by the 
County Attorney and to commit to allocating $10,000 for the construction of the unpaved 
Greenway, utilizing County staff and equipment as the in-kind local match for the grant, in the 
event that BRDG exercised their right to cancel the contract. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

PARKS AND RECREATION PROPOSED APPALCART CONTRACT RENEWAL 
Mr. Stephen Poulos, Parks and Recreation Director, presented a proposed contract with 
AppalCART for transportation services in FY 2013.  The proposed rates were $1.25 per vehicle 
mile, an increase of $0.15, and $14.68 per vehicle service hour, an increase of $0.20.  Mr. Poulos 
stated transportation services were used for recreational purposes associated with summer camps. 
 
Mr. Mike Norwood, AppalCART Finance Officer, stated that the increased rates were due to fuel 
costs. 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

9



County Attorney Eggers stated that the contract was standard and had been used in past years. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to approve the contract between 
Watauga County Parks and Recreation and AppalCART as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

PROJECT ON AGING MATTERS 

A. Proposed AppalCART Contract Renewal 
Ms. Angie Boitnotte, Project on Aging Director, presented a proposed contract with AppalCART 
for transportation services in FY 2013.  The proposed rates were $0.75 per vehicle mile, an 
increase of $0.06 per mile, and $13.29 per vehicle service hour, an increase of $0.20 per hour.  
Ms. Boitnotte stated that the transportation services were used for events associated with Project 
on Aging and the Senior Centers. 
 
Mr. Mike Norwood, AppalCART Finance Officer, stated that the increased rates were due to fuel 
costs. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that the contract was standard and had been used in past years. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to approve the contract 
between Watauga County Project on Aging and AppalCART as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

B. FY 2013 Home and Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) Allocation Request 
Ms. Boitnotte recommended accepting $261,640 in Home and Community Care Block Grant 
(H&CCBG) funds for FY 2013.  The required local match was $28,671 and was present in the 
Project on Aging's FY 2013 budget.   
 
H&CCBG funding was proposed to be allocated as follows: 
 

H&CCBG Service H&CCBG Match 
   

In-Home Aide $120,679 $13,409 
Congregate Meals $43,795 $4,866 
Home Delivered Meals $80,767 $8,974 
Transportation $12,798 $1,422 

 
Ms. Boitnotte stated that in the past a waiver was requested for transportation; however, this year 
the agency was required to allocate H&CCBG funds for transportation services. 

072412 BCC Meeting

10



Ms. Boitnotte stated that Title III-D funds were required to be used for Evidence Based Health 
Promotion (EBHP) classes for FY 2013 and those funds were to remain at the High County Area 
Agency on Aging to support EBHP programs across their seven-county region. 
 
Ms. Boitnotte also stated that Family Caregiver Support Program funds (Respite II) had been 
reduced by 10% as follows: 
 

Non-H&CCBG Service Non-H&CCBG Match 
   

Family Caregiver Respite $3,601 $0 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the allocations of 
Home and Community Care Block Grant, Title III-D funds and Family Caregiver Support 
Program funds as presented by Ms. Boitnotte. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

SANITATION MATTERS 

A. Bid Award Request to Pave Three Container Sites 
Mr. J.V. Potter, Operations Service Director, stated that the following bids were received to pave 
three container sites:   
 

Container Site 
Bidder Deep Gap Valle Crucis Landfill 

Moretz Paving $41,491 $27,300 $25,700 
Carl Rose & Sons, Inc. $42,516 $29,950 $28,000 
Boone Paving no quote $29,307 no quote 

 
Mr. Potter stated that the Deep Gap site required broken pavement to be removed and the site to 
be re-paved from the ground up.  Once the paving was complete, Mr. Potter stated that the site 
attendant could be relocated to better serve the site. 
 
Mr. Potter recommended awarding the bid to Moretz Paving for paving all three sites, in the total 
amount of $94,491, as they were the lowest responsible and responsive bidder for each site.  Mr. 
Potter also recommended allocating the funds for this project from increased revenue generated 
by the sale of recycled materials. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to award the bid for paving the 
Deep Gap, Valle Crucis, and Landfill container sites to Moretz Paving, in the total amount of 
$94,491, with funds to be allocated from revenue generated by the sale of recycled materials. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

072412 BCC Meeting

11



 
The Board commended the Sanitation Department’s recycling efforts and stated that Watauga 
County was recently rated as # 7 in the State for recycling. 

B. Public Hearing Request to Allow Citizen Comment on Proposed Updates to the Solid 
Waste Management Plan 

Mr. Potter requested the Board schedule a public hearing for the July 24, 2012, meeting to allow 
citizen comment on proposed updates to the County’s Solid Waste Management Plan. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to schedule a public hearing on 
July 24, 2012, at 6:00 P.M. to allow citizen comment on proposed changes to the County’s Solid 
Waste Management Plan. 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, reviewed the following budget amendments: 
 
Account # Description Debit Credit 
283102-312111 Tax Revenue Todd Fire District  $2,500 
284340-469911 Payment to Todd Fire District $2,500  
283102-312107 Tax Revenue Cove Creek Fire District  $9,500 
284340-469907 Payment to Cove Creek Fire District $9,500  
 

The amendment recognized additional estimated fire tax district revenues and payments above 
budgeted amounts due to fire departments. 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
103300-343315 Homeland Security Grant IM Classes  $16,084 
104330-449912 Homeland Security Grant IM Classes  $16,084  
 

The amendment recognized grant revenue and expense for incident management training classes 
which was approved at the June 5, 2012, Board meeting. 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
663740-381000 Sale of Recycling Scrap  $94,491 
667420-457001 Capital Outlay-Land Improvements $94,491  
    

The amendment recognized additional revenue to fund the paving contract with Moretz Paving 
as approved earlier in this meeting. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the budget 
amendments as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

072412 BCC Meeting

12



MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Communications and Emergency Services Matters 
1. Proposed Resolution Authorizing the Establishment of the Department of 

Communications and Emergency Services Supervised by the County Manager 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that, as a part of the consolidation of emergency 
communications, the Board was required to adopt a resolution transferring the operations and 
management of the 911 Emergency Communications Center from the Watauga County Sheriff to 
the Watauga County Manager.  The effective date of the resolution was to be the date the County 
was issued an ORI (originating routing identifier) from the North Carolina State Bureau of 
Investigation (SBI). 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to adopt the resolution 
transferring the operations and management of the 911 Emergency Communications Center from 
the Sheriff to the County Manager. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

A. Communications and Emergency Services Matters 
2. Proposed Management Control Agreement Regarding the Sheriff’s Office and 911 

Dispatch Center 
 
County Manager Geouque presented a required proposed Management Control Agreement 
between the Sheriff’s Office and the new communication center to allow access to criminal 
records, driver’s license information and other National Crime Information Center (NCIC) and 
Division of Criminal Investigation (DCI) information as required by law enforcement agencies in 
their daily activities.  The agreement was to be included with the request to be submitted to the 
North Carolina SBI for the issuance of an ORI for the new communications center.  The new 
communications center cannot operate without this agreement. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the Management 
Control Agreement as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

13



A. Communications and Emergency Services Matters 
3. Proposed Interlocal Governmental Agreement Regarding Consolidation of 911 

Dispatch Services for Watauga County and the Town of Blowing Rock 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that the County had received the Interlocal Governmental 
Agreement adopted and signed by the Town of Blowing Rock regarding consolidation of their 
911 dispatch services with those of the County.  The initial year of the agreement calls for the 
Town of Blowing Rock to provide funding in the amount of $165,015, with each subsequent 
year’s funding subject to a CPI increase. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the Interlocal 
Governmental Agreement with the Town of Blowing Rock presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

A. Communications and Emergency Services Matters 
4. Establishment of the Watauga County Communications and Emergency Services 

Advisory Committee 
 

County Manager Geouque stated that the Interlocal Governmental Agreement with the Town of 
Blowing Rock required the establishment of an advisory committee.  The purpose of the 
committee was to advise the County on matters related to communications and emergency 
services and to recommend standards, policies, procedures, protocols, and actions to maintain 
and enhance the quality of communications and emergency services. 
 
The County Manager recommended the following as members of the Communications and 
Emergency Services Advisory Committee in addition to the Emergency Services Director who 
was to serve as an Ex-Officio member: 
 

• Representative of the Town of Blowing Rock 
• Representative of the Watauga County Sheriff’s Office 
• Representative of Fire Services 
• Representative of Watauga Medics 
• Watauga County Commissioner 

 
The County Manager stated that, as this was an informal committee and was to only make 
recommendations to the County, the Board had the option to direct the County Manager to 
request representatives from each of the organizations recommended and organize the initial 
meeting.  Once the County Manager received the recommended representatives, the committee 
could proceed forward or, if the Board so desired, the recommendations could be brought back to 
the Board for formal approval.  The County Manager also clarified that, if the representative 
appointed to the committee could not be in attendance, the entity had the option of sending a 
substitute. 

072412 BCC Meeting

14



Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to direct the County Manager to 
solicit the Town of Blowing Rock, Watauga County Sheriff’s Office, Fire Services, and Watauga 
Medics for a representative to serve on the Communication and Emergency Services Advisory 
Committee and to authorize the County Manager to accept and appoint the members as 
recommendations were received. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

 
Vice-Chairman Gable moved to authorize the County Manager to approve minor adjustments as 
necessary throughout the process of transferring Watauga County communications from the 
Sheriff’s Office and Town of Blowing Rock. 
 
Commissioner Deal stated that the County Manager should already have that authority as the 
transfer would be to a new County Department and all County Departments were ultimately 
overseen by the County Manager.  County Attorney Eggers concurred that the County Manager 
would already have that authority. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable withdrew his motion. 

B. Announcements 
County Manager Geouque announced that the first meeting in July was cancelled due to the 
adoption of the annual budget and the beginning of a new fiscal year.  Also, with the primary 
run-off slated for July 17, 2012, requiring the use of the Commissioners’ Board Room as an 
official polling place, the second regular meeting was rescheduled.  Therefore, only one Board 
meeting was currently scheduled for the month and was to be held on July 24, 2012, at 5:30 PM. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 7:05 P.M., Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to resume the open meeting at 
7:12 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

072412 BCC Meeting

15



 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the June 5, 2012, 
closed session minutes as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

 
At 7:14 P.M., Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to re-enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and Personnel Matters, 
per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6). 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Chairman Miller, moved to resume the open meeting at 
7:50 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to: 
 

• release $25,000 of the current retainage held from Vannoy Construction as associated 
with the construction of the new high school; and 

 
• authorize the payment in an amount of up to $25,000 to LaFave Construction for repairs 

to the roof edge metal at the new Watauga High School; and 
 

• to authorize the County Attorney and County Manager to negotiate with Vannoy 
Construction regarding repairs to the roof relief angle at the new high school with 
Vannoy to provide the labor, if the County provided the backing and caulking. 

 
VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 
 

 

072412 BCC Meeting

16



ADJOURN 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
7:52 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust as excused) 

 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

17



Blank Page 
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

18



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE JULY 24, 2012 AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
  

072412 BCC Meeting

19



Blank Page 
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

20



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE PROPOSED LEGAL SERVICES CONTRACT RENEWAL WITH 
SMITH, RODGERS & STRICKLAND (SR&S) 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Sheriff will present a contract for legal services by Smith, Rodgers & Strickland (SR&S).  
This contract is in addition to the services provided by the County Attorney.  According to the 
Sheriff, SR&S provides timely information, opinions and in-service training to his Office.  Funds 
have been budgeted, as in the past, to cover this expense.   
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board on the approval of the contract for additional legal services. 
 
  

072412 BCC Meeting

21



072412 BCC Meeting

22



072412 BCC Meeting

23



072412 BCC Meeting

24



072412 BCC Meeting

25



072412 BCC Meeting

26



072412 BCC Meeting

27



Blank Page 
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

28



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

HUNGER AND HEALTH COALITION PAVING REQUEST 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Compton Fortuna, Director of the Hunger and Health Coalition, will request the County, as 
owner of the old health department property, repair Health Center Drive which services the 
Hunger and Health Coalition, Caldwell Community College, and the non-profit agencies that 
sub-lease space from the Coalition in the Hannah Building.  Ms. Fortuna had previously 
requested assistance from the Board in November of 2011.  At that time, the estimate to repave 
the road was $17,335 which included $2,860 for pothole repair.  The County does provide 
property and liability and flood insurance for the facility. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
 
 
  

072412 BCC Meeting

29



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Deron.Geouque
Sent: Wednesday, July 18, 2012 10:38 AM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: Fwd: Paving Request from Hunger and Health Coalition

 
 
Deron T. Geouque 
Watauga County Manager 
814 West King Street  
Boone, NC 28607 
(P) 828-265-8000  
(F) 828-264-3230  
Email - Deron.Geouque@watgov.org 

----- Forwarded message ----- 
From: "Compton Fortuna" <comptonfortuna@gmail.com> 
Date: Tue, Jul 17, 2012 1:36 pm 
Subject: Paving Request from Hunger and Health Coalition 
To: "Deron.Geouque" <Deron.Geouque@watgov.org> 

Hi Deron. Sorry to be last minute in getting back to you – I had to talk with a few folks as I wasn’t sure about requesting 
placement on the agenda. After much discussion, we would like to be placed on the agenda at the next available time. 
  
Thank you for your time and assistance. 
  
Compton 
  

Compton Fortuna 
Executive Director 
	 

 
P.O. Box 1837 
141 Health Center Drive 
Boone, NC 28607 
Phone (828) 262-1628    Fax (828) 262-0649 
	 
	 
  

From: Deron.Geouque [mailto:Deron.Geouque@watgov.org]  
Sent: Thursday, July 05, 2012 3:08 PM 
To: Compton Fortuna 
Subject: RE: Paving Request from Hunger and Health Coalition 
  

Compton: 
  
When I spoke to NCDOT they indicated there was nothing they could do as this was not a state road.  Please advise 
before July 17, 2012, if you would like to be placed on the July 24, 2012, agenda. 
  
Sincerely,  
  

072412 BCC Meeting

30



2

Deron Geouque 
Watauga County Manager 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC 28607 
(P) 828-265-8000 
(F) 828-264-3230 
Email Deron.Geouque@watgov.org 
  
From: Compton Fortuna [mailto:comptonfortuna@gmail.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, July 03, 2012 10:33 AM 
To: Deron.Geouque 
Subject: RE: Paving Request from Hunger and Health Coalition 
  
Hi Deron. Thank you for your reply. Is there any process by which we might petition the DOT or appeal the decision? Is it 
something that the County Commissioners could request that the DOT do? I will check with my Board chair to share the 
information and to find out whether she would like to request placement on the agenda. We are grateful for the support we 
have been allocated from the County and I understand that funding is in short supply. I hope that we can find a way to address 
our paving issue. 
  
I have attached a few pictures of Health Center Drive to demonstrate the complications. 
  
Thank you for your time and assistance. 
  
Compton 
  

Compton Fortuna 
Executive Director 
	 

 
P.O. Box 1837 
141 Health Center Drive 
Boone, NC 28607 
Phone (828) 262-1628    Fax (828) 262-0649 
	 
	 
  

From: Deron.Geouque [mailto:Deron.Geouque@watgov.org]  
Sent: Wednesday, June 27, 2012 12:28 PM 
To: Compton Fortuna 
Subject: RE: Paving Request from Hunger and Health Coalition 
  

Compton: 
  
I have contacted NCDOT and was informed that they would not be able to provide assistance as this was not a state 
road.  If you like, I will be more than glad to place you on the agenda for the July 24, 2012, meeting.   
  
Please let me know your wishes.   
  
Sincerely,  
  
Deron Geouque 
Watauga County Manager 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC 28607 
(P) 828-265-8000 

072412 BCC Meeting

31



3

(F) 828-264-3230 
Email Deron.Geouque@watgov.org 
  
From: Compton Fortuna [mailto:comptonfortuna@gmail.com]  
Sent: Friday, June 22, 2012 3:57 PM 
To: Deron.Geouque 
Subject: Paving Request from Hunger and Health Coalition 
  
Good afternoon. A few weeks ago I mentioned that we were working with our neighbor organizations to appeal to the county 
for assistance with paving. I have attached the letter signed by many of those organizations and supported by all. I’m not sure 
what the best way to handle this will be – do we need to be an agenda item? Please let me know what will be the best way to 
approach this project. 
  
Thank you for your time and assistance. Have a great weekend. 
  
Compton 
  

Compton Fortuna 
Executive Director 
	 

 
P.O. Box 1837 
141 Health Center Drive 
Boone, NC 28607 
Phone (828) 262-1628    Fax (828) 262-0649 
	 
	 
  

072412 BCC Meeting

32



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

PLANNING AND INSPECTION MATTERS 

A.  Proposed NC Rural Center Grant Application 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Furman will present a request to submit a grant application to the NC Rural Economic 
Development Center on behalf of Appalachian Mountain Brewery (AMB).  The grant would be 
in the amount of $80,000 and come from the Building Reuse and Restoration Program.  The 
funds will be utilized to renovate a building at 163 Boone Creek Drive which will incorporate 
wind and solar technology.  This is the same grant program that was utilized by Aaron’s on 
Highway 105. 
 
AMB has committed to the creation and maintenance of 10 jobs and providing the required 5% 
($4,000) cash match.  The application deadline is August 24, 2012, with notices of award to be 
made by October 15, 2012.   
 
Staff requests Board action to authorize the submission of the grant application to the NC Rural 
Economic Development Center on behalf of Appalachian Mountain Brewery in the amount of 
$80,000 with the understanding that Appalachian Mountain Brewery will pay the required 
$4,000 cash match.   
 
  

072412 BCC Meeting

33



Memorandum 
Date: July 18, 2012 

To: Deron Geouque 

From: Joe Furman 

RE: NC Rural Center grant application  

Mr. Sean Spiegelman, owner of Appalachian Mountain Brewery (AMB) is requesting the 
County to submit a grant application to the NC Rural Economic Development Center on his 
behalf for $80,000 funding from the Building Reuse and Restoration Program. He will use the 
funds to renovate the building at 163 Boone Creek Drive, which will be the location of the 
business. Renovation will include installation of wind and solar electricity-generating 
equipment.  
 
This is the same grant program in which the County participated to fund the renovation of the 
building which now houses Aaron’s on the Highway 105 Extension. That project was 
successfully completed and closed out. Job creation is a key component of the program. You 
will recall that the County receives the grant funds, loans them to the business, and forgives 
the loan if the promised number of jobs are created within 18 months of the grant award, and 
maintains them for at least 6 months. AMB will commit to the creation and maintenance of 10 
jobs. Previously, the program allowed for an in-kind match, which could be provided by 
project administration; newly enacted rules require a 5% cash match ($4000) from the 
applicant. AMB has agreed to provide that match. 
 
If approved, the application must be submitted by August 24, 2012; awards will be announced 
on or about October15, 2012. Attached is information about the grant, the pre-application 
form and information about AMB. I request Board of Commissioners’ approval at the July 
24th meeting to apply for the funds.  
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

34



072412 BCC Meeting

35



072412 BCC Meeting

36



072412 BCC Meeting

37



072412 BCC Meeting

38



072412 BCC Meeting

39



072412 BCC Meeting

40



072412 BCC Meeting

41



072412 BCC Meeting

42



072412 BCC Meeting

43



072412 BCC Meeting

44



072412 BCC Meeting

45



072412 BCC Meeting

46



072412 BCC Meeting

47



072412 BCC Meeting

48



072412 BCC Meeting

49



Blank Page 
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

50



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

PLANNING AND INSPECTION MATTERS 

B. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Scattered Site Housing Program Matters 
1.  2009 Program Close Out Public Hearing Request 
2.  2012 Program Public Hearing Request 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Furman will request the Board schedule a public hearing for the August 21, 2012, meeting 
for the closeout of the current 2009 Scattered Site Housing (SSH) project.  
 
Mr. Furman will also request the Board schedule a public hearing for the October 17, 2012, 
meeting as required to begin the process for the new 2012 SSH project.   
 
Board action is requested to schedule the two (2) public hearings. 
  

072412 BCC Meeting

51



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Friday, July 13, 2012 12:30 PM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle
Subject: request for public hearings

Deron, 
At the July 24, 2012 Board of Commissioners’ meeting, I would like to request the scheduling of two (2) public hearings for the 
August 21, 2012 meeting. Both hearings are in regard to the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program. One would 
be a required close‐out hearing for the current (2009) Scattered Site Housing (SSH) project, which will be complete before that 
date. The second would be the hearing required to begin the process for a new (2012) SSH project, for which applications are 
due October 17, 2012. For the new program, we are required to have two (2) hearings; this would be the first. You will recall that 
the SSH funds are provided on a revolving basis to the counties every three years; the application is a formality.  Thanks. 
Joe  
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

52



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

PLANNING AND INSPECTION MATTERS 

B. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Scattered Site Housing Program Matters 
3.  2012 Program Proposed Committee Appointments 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Community Development Block Grant Scattered Site Housing program requires the County 
to appoint a committee to help establish polices and select recipients of housing assistance for 
the program.  Mr. Furman recommends the Board appoint the committee as is, with the 
exception of the current directors or their designees of WAMY, Habitat and Appalachian District 
Health Department; as Ms. Miller, Tony Caito, and Danny Staley are no longer in Watauga 
County, new appointees would be required for these positions. 
 
Board action is requested.   
 
 
  

072412 BCC Meeting

53



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Friday, July 13, 2012 12:41 PM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle
Subject: committee for new SSH project
Attachments: committee.docx

Deron, 
We need to have appointed a committee to help establish policies and select the recipients of housing assistance under the 
upcoming CDBG SSH project. This is a requirement of receipt of the grant funds. Attached is the committee for the current SSH 
project. Angela Miller (WAMY), Tony Caito (Habitat for Humanity), and Danny Staley (ADHD) are no longer in Watauga County. I 
request the Commissioners to appoint the committee as is , except that the current Directors or their designees of WAMY, 
Habitat and ADHD be substituted. Please place this on the July 24, 2012 meeting agenda. Thanks. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

54



Jim Atkinson  Watauga County Department of Social Services 
Scott Eggers  Blue Ridge Electrical Membership Co-op 
Margie Mansure  NC Cooperative Extension – Watauga County 
Compton Fortuna  Watauga County Hunger Coalition 
Kevin Rothrock  Planner, Town of Blowing Rock 
Angie Boitnotte  Watauga County Partnership on Aging 
Angela Miller  WAMY Community Action 
Tony Caito  Director, Watauga County Habitat for Humanity 
Andy Blethen  Environmental Health Director, Appalachian District Health Department 
Danny Staley  Executive Director, Appalachian District Health Department 
Loretta Clawson  Mayor, Town of Boone 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

55



Blank Page 
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

56



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

TAX MATTERS  

A. Monthly Collections Report 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Tax Administrator Kelvin Byrd will present the Monthly Collections Report and be available for 
questions and discussion. 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

072412 BCC Meeting

57



072412 BCC Meeting

58



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

TAX MATTERS  

B. Refunds and Releases 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Byrd will present the Refunds and Releases Report.  Board action is required to accept the 
Refunds and Releases Report. 
 
 
  

072412 BCC Meeting

59



072412 BCC Meeting

60



072412 BCC Meeting

61



072412 BCC Meeting

62



072412 BCC Meeting

63



072412 BCC Meeting

64



072412 BCC Meeting

65



072412 BCC Meeting

66



072412 BCC Meeting

67



072412 BCC Meeting

68



072412 BCC Meeting

69



072412 BCC Meeting

70



072412 BCC Meeting

71



072412 BCC Meeting

72



072412 BCC Meeting

73



072412 BCC Meeting

74



072412 BCC Meeting

75



072412 BCC Meeting

76



072412 BCC Meeting

77



072412 BCC Meeting

78



072412 BCC Meeting

79



072412 BCC Meeting

80



072412 BCC Meeting

81



072412 BCC Meeting

82



072412 BCC Meeting

83



072412 BCC Meeting

84



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, will review budget amendments as included in your 
packet. 
 
Board approval is requested. 
 
 
  

072412 BCC Meeting

85



                  W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 

814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
         
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Deron Geouque, County Manager 
FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
SUBJECT: Budget Amendments-FY 2012/13 
DATE:  July 24, 2012 
 
The following budget amendments require approval of the Watauga County Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
103300-349909  NC Lottery Funds     $850,000 
105911-470006  Cove Creek Roof Replacement $850,000 
 
Per Board action 3-17-12 approving the application for NC Lottery funds; to recognize the 
award of the funds applied for by the Watauga County Board of Education. Notification of NC 
Department of Public Instruction approval of this project was received July 2, 2012.  
 
Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 
 
103300-349909  NC Lottery Funds     $106,588 
105911-470009  Hardin Park Boiler Replacement $35,175 
105911-470010  Green Valley Parking Lot Paving $71,413 
 
 
To appropriate NC Lottery funds awarded in Fiscal Year 2010-11 for unfinished Watauga 
County Board of Education projects. Projects are expected to be completed in first quarter of 
Fiscal Year 2012-13. 

072412 BCC Meeting

86



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PUBLIC HEARINGS TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE COUNTY’S SOLID 
WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE  
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Every three (3) years, the County is required by the State to update its Solid Waste Management 
Plan.  A public hearing is required as part of this process.  The updated plan is attached for 
review.   
 
Upon completion of the public hearing, Board action is requested to approve the plan as 
presented. 
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

87



PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

THE WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL HOLD A PUBLIC 

HEARING AT 6:00 P.M. TUESDAY, JULY 24, 2012, IN THE COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD 

ROOM OF THE WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING LOCATED AT 814 

WEST KING STREET, BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA.  THE PURPOSE OF THE PUBLIC 

HEARING WILL BE TO GATHER CITIZEN INPUT ON THE COUNTY’S SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE.  THE UPDATE IS REQUIRED BY STATE LAW AS A 

MEANS FOR COUNTIES AND MUNICIPALITIES TO MAKE CHANGES TO THEIR TEN-

YEAR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLANS.  WATAUGA COUNTY’S SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT PLAN WAS ADOPTED IN 2009 AND OUTLINES ALL ASPECTS OF 

SOLID WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL IN THE COUNTY.  A COPY OF THE 

DRAFT PLAN UPDATE IS AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW ON THE COUNTY’S WEBSITE 

AT HTTP://WWW.WATAUGACOUNTY.ORG AND IN THE WATAUGA COUNTY 

MANAGER’S OFFICE.  FOR INFORMATION OR QUESTIONS, PLEASE CALL (828) 265-

8000. 

 
 
 
 
 
        NATHAN A. MILLER 
        CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

88

http://www.wataugacounty.org/


 
Watauga County Government 

Solid Waste Management Plan Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

J. V. Potter, Operation Services Director 
Watauga County Sanitation Department 

336 Landfill Rd. Boone, NC 28607 

072412 BCC Meeting

89



 
 

Table of Contents 
 
Introduction ...................................................................................... 1 
 
Update Development & Public Participation ................................................. 1 
 
General Goals & Objectives........................................................................................... 1 
 
Geographic Area & Economic Characteristics .............................................. 1 
 
Waste Reduction Goals ................................................................................. 2 
 
Waste Stream Analysis ........................................................................ 3 
 
Planning Elements .......................................................................... 3-14 
 
Cost Analysis ..................................................................................... 14-16 
 
Executive Summary ............................................................................. 16-17 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 
 

 
• Resolutions from all participating entities 
• Copy of notice for public hearing 
• Map of facilities and disposal sites 
• Planning element sheets 
• Waste characterization summary 
• Waste reduction goal sheet 
• Watauga County Solid Waste Ordinance 

 

072412 BCC Meeting

90



INTRODUCTION 
 
In June 1997, the Watauga County Board of Commissioners adopted a Solid Waste 
Management Plan in accordance with NC General Statute 130-A-309.09A.  The plan covered all 
aspects of solid waste management in Watauga County, including the Towns of Blowing Rock, 
Boone, Beech Mountain and Seven Devils for the ten year planning period (FY 1996/97 through 
FY 2005/06).  Updates were adopted in 2000, 2003, and 2006.  This update covers the same 
geographic area for the period FY 2010/11 through FY 2021/22.  The update outlines Watauga 
County's intended solid waste management and reduction programs, and addresses waste 
reduction goals.  All data included in this report is from FY 2010/11. 
 
Watauga County closed its Solid Waste Landfill in 1994, and completed construction of its ten 
staffed convenience centers in 1998.  Watauga County completed the construction of a new 
transfer station in September 2005 and the old transfer station was converted into a state-of-
the-art recycling center the same year.  The County has no current plans for construction of a 
new landfill or more convenience centers, and will focus its waste reduction efforts on 
reduction, reuse and recycling. 
 
 
UPDATE DEVELOPMENT & PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
The update was developed by members of the Watauga County Sanitation Department and 
Watauga County Administration, with assistance from the High Country Council of 
Governments.  A draft of the update was presented to the Towns of Boone, Blowing Rock, 
Beech Mountain, and Seven Devils.  Copies of the draft were made available to the public for 
review, and a public meeting was held to gather citizen input on the draft update. 
 
 
GENERAL GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
 

1. To meet the County's waste reduction goals. 
2. To provide everyone in the community with efficient and cost-effective waste collection 

services and waste reduction opportunities. 
3. To increase the efficiency and cost effectiveness of the solid waste program. 
4. To provide educational materials to businesses and communities wishing to increase the 

effectiveness of their solid waste reduction programs. 
5. To protect public health and the environment. 

 
 
GEOGRAPHIC AREA & ECONOMIC CHARACTERISTICS 
 
The Solid Waste Management Plan Update covers Watauga County and its four incorporated 
municipalities:  Boone, Beech Mountain, Blowing Rock, and Seven Devils.  Watauga County is 
located in the northeast corner of North Carolina in the Blue Ridge Mountains.  The majority of 

072412 BCC Meeting

91



Watauga County's residents live in the rural unincorporated areas.  The County's 2010 
population was 51,079.  With a land area of 313 square miles, the population density is 
approximately 163 persons per square mile. The majority of the County is experiencing 
moderate, steady growth with an emphasis on second-home construction.  The Town of Boone 
is Watauga County’s largest town, and is also the County seat.  The average elevation of 
Watauga County is 3,266 feet above sea level. 
 
Tourism creates many jobs in the County with 2,390 jobs being directly attributable to travel 
and tourism (2010).  Appalachian State University, one of the largest employers in the County is 
vital to the economic pulse of the area.  It has an enrollment of approximately 17,344 students 
(fall enrollment, 2011).  Watauga Medical Center is also a major employer in the County.  It 
offers advanced healthcare not only to the residents of Watauga County, but to the 
surrounding counties as well.  Manufacturing makes up a small sector of the County's 
workforce with 4%.  The two largest manufacturers in the County are IRC and Hospitality Mints.   
While Christmas tree harvesting constitutes the bulk of the County’s agricultural industry, a 
very small percentage of the work force is employed in this sector.  According to the U.S. 
Census, the County’s median household income was $31,967 (2006-2010). 
 
Seasonal residents increase the amount of solid waste generated during the summer months of 
May through September.  In addition to seasonal residents, a significant number of tourists visit 
the County each year and, in a similar manner, generate a significant amount of solid waste but 
are not counted in the County's official population figures.  The County has experienced steady 
increases in tourism.  Tourism revenues rose from $130.23 million in 1998 to $189.77 million in 
2010. 
 
 
WASTE REDUCTION GOALS 
 
The Watauga County Solid Waste Management Plan Update 1997-2007 set the following waste 
reduction goals: 
 

30% waste stream reduction by June 30, 2001. 
40% waste stream reduction by June 30, 2006. 

 
These reduction figures were based on a 1991 baseline per capita disposal rate of 0.99 
tons/year (provided by NCDENR, Division of Waste Management Solid Waste Section).  With a 
per capita disposal rate of 1.048 (6% increase) in FY 1998/99, the County established a goal of 
reducing the waste reduction goals to 6% by 2006 and 12% by 2010 in the Solid Waste 
Management Plan Update for 2000.  In FY 2001/02, the per capita rate exhibited an even 
greater increase from the baseline year:  1.15 or a 16% by 2006 and 12% by 2013.  FY 2004/05 
saw another increase in the per capita rate, to 1.32%.  In FY 2007/08, the County's per capita 
rate declined to 1.20, a decrease of 9% from FY 2004/05 - but still higher than the baseline rate.  
In FY 2010/11, Watauga County’s per capita rate declined to 0.78, below the 1991 baseline rate 
of 0.99. 

072412 BCC Meeting

92



 
While the County has achieved significant reductions in the per capita rate, Watauga County 
must continue this effort. Waste reduction goals may be difficult to achieve consistently over 
the long term due to many factors, including: 
 

• Steady increases in tourism which generate large amounts of solid waste, and adds 
to the per capita rate because it does not reflect a population increase. 

 
• Steady increases in second-home construction which generates substantial C&D 

waste, and adds to the per capita rate because it does not reflect a population 
increase. 

 
The new goal for FY 2021122 will be 2%. 
 
 
WASTE STREAM ANALYSIS 
 
Please refer to the Appendix for the County's Waste Stream Summary. 
 
 
PLANNING ELEMENTS 
 
The following solid waste management planning elements were analyzed during development 
of this update.  Analysis of the elements included examination of current programs and 
feasibility of additional programs/efforts. 
 
1.  Reduction 
 
Individual counties, especially rural counties, are somewhat limited in the amount of solid 
waste reduction that can be realized, regardless of programs that could be implemented.  
Packaging by manufacturers and national consumer preferences for convenience determine a 
great deal of waste stream in any county.  Even the most conscientious efforts to reduce waste 
are limited by the fact that many goods can be obtained only in wasteful packaging.  Rural 
counties (such as Watauga) do not have a sufficient number of businesses and industries to 
effectively promote waste exchanges, financial incentives, or other programs that would result 
in a significant source reduction. 
 
The County currently is addressing waste reduction by providing community and school 
education programs, press releases and information on the County website.  Waste reduction 
information also is sent to e-mail lists, included with County tax bills and is given to residents at 
the convenience centers. 
 
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

93



2.  Collection 
 
Since development of the Watauga County Solid Waste Management Plan Update 1997-2007, 
the County has constructed two additional convenience centers.  There are now ten 
convenience centers, all of which are secured and staffed.  The convenience centers accept 
residential waste and recyclables.  Residential waste and recyclables are also accepted at the 
transfer station.  The convenience centers are located throughout the County at the following 
locations:  Green Valley, 421 West, 321/AHO, Foscoe, Deep Gap, Valle Crucis, 221 South, 
Triplett, Bethel, and Transfer Station/Old Landfill.  The table below lists monthly solid waste 
tonnages collected at the Watauga County Transfer Station for FY 2010/11. 
 

FY 2010/2011  Tons of Solid Waste 
 
July 4028 
August 3962 
September 3420 
October 3180 
November 2959 
December 2412 
January 2634 
February 2887 
March 3798 
April 3184 
May 3353 
June 3921 
 
Total Tonnage: 39,738 

 
The impacts of tourism can be felt in Watauga County throughout the entire year. Although it 
seems that the summer months show the greatest fluctuation of solid waste collected.  Solid 
waste collection was also up in October because the beautiful fall foliage attracts many visitors 
to the area.  Seasonal variations in solid waste collections create an obstacle for reducing the 
amount of waste disposed. 
 
Solid  waste collection  is also handled  by the Town  of Beech  Mountain,  the Town  of Blowing  
Rock,  Appalachian  State  University,  and  private  collection  companies.    The towns of Beech 
Mountain and Blowing Rock operate curbside collection programs, and the Town of Boone 
contracts directly with Garbage Disposal Services, Inc., for curbside collection.    The  Town  of  
Seven  Devils  does  not  provide  for  solid  waste  disposal collection for its citizens. 
 
The County will continue to collect solid waste and recyclables at its ten convenience centers 
and transfer station. 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

94



The  total  cost  of solid  waste  collection  for Watauga  County  during  FY  2010/11  was 
$551,000.  This cost figure includes operation of the convenience centers and transport of solid 
waste to the transfer station. 
 
3.  Recycling & Reuse 
 
Watauga County hired a full-time Recycling Coordinator in September 2007 to develop and 
implement waste reduction and recycling programs in the County, provide educational 
programs and materials, monitor markets for recyclables and facilitate improvements to 
convenience centers. 
 
Watauga County collects recyclables at its transfer station and ten convenience centers. 
Materials accepted at all convenience centers include brown, green and clear glass, aluminum 
and tin cans, plastics, corrugated cardboard, paper (includes newspaper and inserts, office 
paper, junk mail, magazines, books and pasteboard), household batteries (added 2008), 
compact fluorescent lights (added 2008), and rigid plastics (added 2010). 
 
Materials accepted for recycling at the transfer station location include brush, and "special 
waste" (tires, used oil, white goods, lead-acid batteries, electronics (added 2008) and used oil 
filters (added 2009).  See section on "special waste" collection.  The County bales and directly 
markets its recyclables.  Brush also is collected at the transfer station, is chipped into mulch and 
offered back to the public at no charge. 
 
In May of 2002, Watauga County opened a solid waste Swap Shop.  The project was funded 
through a grant from the North Carolina Division of Pollution Prevention and Environmental 
Assistance.  The Swap Shop consists of a 14' x 24' prefabricated building and is located at the 
transfer station.  The Swap Shop is a centralized location where County residents can drop off 
unwanted items that someone else may find use for.  The following items are accepted at the 
Swap Shop:  appliances, hand tools, toys, small power tools, lawn mowers, small furniture, 
household accessories, computers, books, wheels, and bikes.  The Swap Shop helps raise the 
awareness of the need for waste reduction and demonstrates how many items can be reused. 
 
In December 2007, Watauga County partnered with Habitat for Humanity's ReStore to provide 
an outlet for recycling and reusing construction and building materials that previously were 
headed to the landfill.  More than 58 tons of materials have been diverted from the landfill 
since the program began operation.  The ReStore's collection site is located right before the 
scale house when entering the Watauga County Transfer Station and a ReStore employee 
assists customers with identification of materials in their load that can be donated to the 
Restore.  It is open Mon. - Fri. from 9:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. 
 
The construction of the new transfer station was completed in September of 2005.  The new 
facility has allowed for a larger storage area for recyclables and has improved the overall 
efficiency of the recycling process for the County. 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

95



The Town of Boone contracts with Garbage Disposal Services, Inc. (GDS) to operate a curbside 
recycling program inside the corporate town limits.  Recyclables collected include all colored 
and clear glass, #1 and #2 plastics, steel and aluminum cans, newspapers with inserts, catalogs, 
magazines, telephone books, office/school paper, junk mail and pasteboard(ex: Cereal boxes, 
etc.).  There is an apartment/condo complex route with the collection of all colors of glass, steel 
and aluminum cans, #1 and #2 plastics, newspapers with inserts, catalogs, magazines, 
telephone books, office/school paper, junk mail and pasteboard (ex. Cereal boxes, etc.).  
Recyclables collected on the business route are virtually all colors of office paper, sticky notes, 
message pads, mail, newspapers, magazines, catalogs, phone books, adding machine tape, 
pasteboard (ex: time cards, file folders, etc.), #1 and #2 plastics and aluminum cans.  Businesses 
can participate in a weekly corrugated cardboard pick-up by contacting GDS, Inc.  Blue 18-gallon 
containers are provided for residential and business curbside recycling participation. 
 
Available to all citizens is the Town of Boone Recycling Center located on Horn in the West 
Drive near the Daniel Boone Native Gardens.  The center includes containers for the collection 
of all the above mentioned items and is unmanned and open 2417.  The Town  of Boone Public 
Works Center at 321 East King Street (Hours:  7:30-5:00) is a drop-site for  the following 
recyclable items:  household batteries, compact fluorescent lights (CFL's), corrugated 
cardboard, paper (newsprint with inserts, magazines, catalogs, phone books and paperback 
books.  The Boone Public Works Center also accepts used oil filters and motor oil which is used 
for heating purposes in the town garage.  The Town of Boone provides curbside pickups for 
special collections such as miscellaneous junk, yard waste, rigid plastics, electronics, appliances, 
tires, etc. to be hauled to the Watauga County Transfer Station/Recycling Center. 
 
The Town of Blowing Rock contracted with GDS beginning in August of 2010 to implement 
curbside recycling.  We distributed 18-gallon recycling containers to all of our residents.  We 
closed drop-off sites once curbside collection begun.  The Town of Blowing Rock collected a 
total of 191 tons of recyclables during Fiscal Year 2010/11. 
 
The Town of Beech Mountain operates a staffed recycling collection center.  Materials collected 
include glass (three colors), aluminum, ferrous metal, plastics, cardboard, and mixed paper.  
There are also five mini-recycling centers at various multi-family complexes.  The town also 
accepts used motor oil and antifreeze.  The Town of Beech Mountain collected a total of 42 
tons of recyclables for FY 2010/11 
 
The Town of Seven Devils contracted with GDS for operation of an unstaffed recycling center 
until 1998.  Due to the high incidence of solid waste being left at the recycling center, and the 
new County convenience center being opened in the nearby Foscoe Community, the town 
closed it recycling center. 
 
Private haulers offer recycling services to Watauga County residents and businesses under 
individual contracts.  The market for recyclables varies significantly over short periods of time.  
Watauga County may add/expand recycling program as the market dictates. 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

96



In FY 2010/11, Watauga County collected a total tonnage of 4,038 and generated $492,564 
from the sale of recyclables. 
 
 

Recycled  
Material 

Tons Collected  
FY 10/11 

  
Clear Glass 226 
Brown Glass 412 
Green Glass 174 
Mixed Plastic 234 
Steel Cans 54 
Aluminum Cans 28 
White Goods 111 
Other Metal 315 
Mixed Paper 664 
Cardboard 1759 
Rigid Plastic 17 
Electronics 44 
TOTAL 4038 

 
4.  Composting & Mulching 
 
Watauga County does not currently operate any composting programs.  Stumps, limbs, and 
untreated wood is stockpiled and ground with a rental tub grinder two times per year.  Mulch is 
offered to County residents free of charge.  In FY 2010/11, 10,283 tons of materials were 
ground, and the total program cost was $124,248. 
 
The Town of Boone provides brush, debris, leaf and junk pickup to all residents on a call-in 
basis.  White goods are taken to the Watauga County Landfill as well as brush and leaves are 
taken to the landfill for mulching.  The town provides compost bins for town residents who may 
pick up one at the Public Works Department. 
 
The Town of Beech Mountain operates a composing facility at its wastewater treatment plant 
(WWTP) site.  The site processes solids from its WWTP, chipped limbs, and collected leaves.  
The mulch is used by the town for landscaping projects, and given to town residents free of 
charge. 
 
The Town of Blowing Rock operates a yard waste program.  Grinding occurs in the spring and in 
the fall.  Grinding takes place on the residence property and mulch is offered to town residents 
free of charge. 
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

97



5.  Incineration with Energy Recovery 
 
Due to the volume of solid waste produced in Watauga County, the air quality issues associated 
with incineration facilities and the high capital costs of implementing a solid waste incineration 
facility, incineration is not a viable option for the County. 
 
6.  Incineration without Energy Recovery 
 
Due to the volume of solid waste produced in Watauga County, the air quality issues associated 
with incineration facilities and the high capital costs of implementing a solid waste incineration 
facility, incineration is not a viable option for the County. 
 
7.  Transfer Outside Geographic Area 
 
Watauga County currently contracts with Foothills Environmental for transfer and disposal of 
solid waste.  Waste Management collects solid waste at the Watauga County transfer station, 
and transports it to Lenoir, NC.  The Foothills Landfill has a projected lifespan of over 22 years.  
The distance from the Watauga County transfer station to the landfill is approximately 33 miles.  
The County has a five-year contract with Foothills Environmental for this transfer/disposal 
service, at a rate of $38.00 per ton.  The average load weighs 19 tons.  The contract expires 
2014. 
 
In FY 2010/11, 39,738 tons of solid waste was transferred out of Watauga County for disposal 
outside the County.  Based upon population projections, Watauga County's population will 
grow 18.2% from 51,079 in 2010 to 60,395 in 2022.  An 18.2% increase in solid waste will result 
in 46,970 tons of solid waste to be transferred in 2022. 
 
8.  Disposal 
 
There was a total of 39,748 tons of solid waste managed at the transfer station.  Solid waste 
generated in Watauga County is disposed of under contract by Foothills Environmental at its 
Landfill facility in Lenoir, NC.  The contract with Foothills Environmental includes transfer and 
disposal for a fee of $38.00 per ton.  The contract expires in 2014. 
 
Watauga County operates a permitted LCID landfill located adjacent to the County's closed 
MSWLF site and transfer station.  The LCID landfill was opened in June 1999, and had a 
construction cost of $53,680.  County residents are charged a fee of $49 per ton for disposal of 
LCID waste.  In FY 2010/11, the cost of operation of the LCID was $28,200. 
 
9.  Education with the Community & Through the Schools 
 
The Watauga County Board of Education currently incorporates waste reduction education in 
its curriculum for grades K-8.  The curriculum was developed in conjunction with the NC State 

072412 BCC Meeting

98



Office of Waste Reduction.  The County recycling coordinator regularly conducts student tours 
for groups from Appalachian State University and schools throughout Watauga County. 
 
The recycling office has developed a puppet show, "Jason's Dream", about recycling and waste 
reduction in conjunction with the Elkland Arts Center that is presented to third grade classes, at 
the public library and at festivals throughout the County.  A power point presentation about the 
County recycling program also was developed and is presented to civic, church and other 
groups. 
 
The recycling office produced "Guidelines for Recycling" - easy-to-read instructions for the 
County recycling program that is given to residents at convenience centers, with recycling bins 
and during education programs.  It is available on the Watauga County web site and is inserted 
in the County tax bills every other year. 
 
The recycling office works with local newspaper, radio and television to provide ongoing 
information and education about additions to the recycling program, waste reduction tips and 
special waste collection and displays are set up during local events and festivals. 
 
The County received a grant from the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural 
Resources in 2008 to purchase 18-gallon recycling bins to give to residents and to purchase 
recycling containers that were placed at County recreational facilities in the spring of 2009.  The 
Recycling Office is working with the County Maintenance and Recreation Departments for the 
collection of these recycled materials and to educate participants about the program. 
 
The County also received 40 event-type beverage recycling bins through a grant from Coca-Cola 
that can be "checked out" and used at local events and festivals.  They have been used for all of 
Blowing Rock's "Art in the Park" events, at the Cove Creek Children's Festival and at numerous 
music events throughout the year. 
 
The recycling office purchased reusable shopping bags to promote using fewer plastic bags that 
are given out during presentations and when residents pick up recycling bins. 
 
The County received a grant from the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural 
Resources in 2010 purchase recycling bins, perform Jason's Dream educational puppet show 
and provide education materials for all of Watauga County Schools. 
 
10.  Special Wastes 
 
Tires are collected free of charge at the Watauga County Transfer Station.  They are currently 
being transferred by the County to U.S. Tire Recycling Facility in Concord, NC for disposal.  The 
cost of tire disposal for FY 2010/11 was $39,613.  Watauga County received $53,692 as 
reimbursement from the State Tire Tax in FY 2010/11. 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

99



White goods are collected free of charge at the Watauga County Transfer Station.  Freon is 
removed from refrigerators, freezers, and air conditioners and the materials are transferred to 
Atlantic Scrap and sold as scrap metal.  The cost of white goods disposal for FY 2010/11 was 
$44,637.00.  Watauga County received $13,480 as reimbursement from the State White Goods 
Tax in FY 2010/11, and generated $119,075 from the sale of scrap metal. 
 
Watauga County collects lead acid batteries at the transfer station.  In FY 2010/11, 122 lead-
acid batteries were collected.  Batteries collected are transferred are sold to a broker.  The 
County received $778 from the sale of lead-acid batteries. 
 
The County also accepts used motor and cooking oils and used oil filters. 
 
Watauga County has designated two days during the year for the collection of household 
hazardous waste at no charge.  The estimated cost of this program for FY 2010/11 was 
$56,143. 
 
Beverage containers 
 
Beverage containers have been banned from the County transfer station.   
 
Recyclable rigid plastic containers 
 
Receptacles for recycling plastic containers #1-7 are available at all of the County convenience 
centers.  Our facility developed a public awareness program addressing the landfill bans on 
plastic containers. 
 
Wooden pallets 
 
Wood pallets are ground into mulch, placed in the brush pile as clean wood, and/or given away 
to County residents.  Pallets are also used to ship used electronics to recycling providers. 
 
Computer equipment and televisions 
 
The County currently provides recycling service for these items.  Some of the wood pallets 
received by the County as waste are used to ship computer equipment and televisions to 
contractors for recycling. 
 
Abandoned manufactured homes 
 

• The County plans to identify abandoned manufactured homes upon request of the 
homeowner only.  A list of abandoned manufactured homes will be available at the 
Department of Planning & Inspections.  The number of homes to be deconstructed 
will be determined by the amount of funding that is available from the Abandoned 
Manufactured Homes Grant Program. 

072412 BCC Meeting

100



• The County will hire a licensed and insured contractor to deconstruct the 
manufactured homes on-site.  Roll-off containers will be delivered to the home site 
by the County where the Contractor will separate the materials into the containers.  
The County will pick up the containers and properly dispose of the materials at the 
Landfill. 

• All recyclables will be removed by the contractor and placed in separate roll-off 
containers for reuse and recycling, including mercury switches from thermostats, in 
which County employees will dispose of properly at the Landfill. 

• If perhaps we receive a mobile home at the landfill that has not been deconstructed, 
we have adequate space to receive one at a time and plan to deconstruct, properly 
separate, and dispose of material.  We plan to revise our Ops plan to include 
deconstruction of abandoned manufactured homes. 

 
ELECTRONICS RECYCLING PLAN (ADDENDUM 10/12/2010) 
 
Collection 
 
As defined in Session Law 2010-67, computer equipment and televisions banned from landfills, 
as well as other electronics such as fax machines, stereo equipment, DVD/VCR players, phones, 
etc., will be collected at the Watauga County Recycling Center located at the Sanitation 
Department on Landfill Road, Monday- Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. and on Saturday 
from 8:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. 
 
Collection of electronic waste began in May 2008. Residents and businesses bring electronic 
waste across the scales and either the weight goes against the annual 2000 pound allotment for 
homeowners or, non-homeowners and businesses are charged $49/ton for electronic waste.  
Electronics are dropped off at the Recycling Center where staff separate, stack and wrap 
electronic equipment on pallets and load the pallets with a fork lift onto a staged trailer. 
Watauga County contracts with an electronics recycling vendor to switch out the loaded trailer 
and haul the electronic waste to their recycling facility. 
 
Education 
 
Information regarding recycling of computer equipment and televisions will be publicized 
(options) 

• via signage at convenience centers and the transfer station 
• with press releases 
• in recycling information handouts 
• in County tax bills 
• on the County website 
• with posted notices at prominent locations such as public buildings 
• others 

 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

101



Tonnage Reporting 
 
The County’s contract with the electronics recycler will include a requirement for the vendor to 
track the tonnage collected, and report these figures to the County. 
 
Other Local Governments 
At this time no other local governments (towns, other counties) will be involved in the County's 
electronic waste management program.  The Towns of Blowing Rock, Boone, Seven Devils, and 
Beech Mountain may, at their discretion, direct their citizens to the County program. 
 
Accounting 
 
A separate account will be established for state electronics funds received by the County.  
These funds will be used to establish and operate the electronics recycling program.  The 
receipt and expenditure of these funds will be tracked separately from other County budget 
items. 
 
11.  Illegal Disposal/Litter 
 
All local governments in Watauga County have anti-litter ordinances in effect.  Lack of 
enforcement personnel and the rural nature of the County make enforcement of the 
ordinances difficult.  Enforcement in the County is handled by County Solid Waste Enforcement 
Officer.  When a private landowner cleans up an illegal dump site, the County waives its tipping 
fee.  A copy of the Solid Waste ordinance is included in this update. 
 
12.  Purchasing Recycled Products 
 
Watauga County purchases recycled products whenever practical. 
 
13.  Disaster Response 
 
The Watauga County Emergency Management Office coordinates resources for emergency 
services in Watauga County.  This office also conducts searches for missing persons, handles 
hazardous materials incidents, conducts emergency preparedness programs/training, and acts 
as liaison for Watauga County to the State Division of Emergency Management during times of 
disaster. In addition to the response phase the Emergency Management Office is responsible 
for plans pertaining to disasters and emergency response.  The Office of Emergency 
Management is responsible for all phases of an emergency: preparedness, mitigation response, 
and recovery. 
 
In coming months, the County will contact the Division of Waste Management in order to have 
a potential disaster debris site approved.  Upon approval of the disaster debris site, the County 
will rent a tub grinder to process the trees and clean wood, and will transfer the remainder of 
the material for proper disposal. In the event of a natural disaster, Watauga County anticipates 

072412 BCC Meeting

102



excess volumes of LCID and C&D materials (trees, metal, building materials, etc.).  The County 
has adequate space at its transfer station site (22 acres) to temporarily store materials. 
 
Given the rural nature of the County, the majority of the storm debris will have a few adverse 
effects on the residents.  The majority of the fallen trees will be cut up and used for firewood.  
Therefore, the County feels the area at the transfer station provides a more than adequate site 
for any storm debris that may be collected. 
 
The County's farms are overwhelmingly used for food/crop (Christmas trees) production and 
are not engaged in large animal farming/breeding activities. In the unlikely event of a mass 
animal mortality incident, the County will respond by following the procedures outlined in the 
Watauga County Emergency Management Plan. 
 
14.  Landfill Gas Project 
 
Watauga County owns a 22-acre landfill containing approximately 500,000 tons of municipal 
solid waste, yard waste, and construction and demolition waste.  The landfill operated between 
the early 1970's and 1994.  The landfill was capped with an artificial membrane covered by a 
clay cap in 1994. 
 
The cap design includes a series of 22 vent structures which were topped by individual solar 
flares.  In 2005 an active landfill gas collection system was installed which included 22 
adjustable well heads and underground hdpe collection and header pipes leading to a 
blower/flare and a flow meter.  A gravity leachate interception system has also been 
constructed, leading to two underground leachate collection tanks.  This collection system has 
been operating since December of 2005 and has been producing landfill gas of about 50% 
methane at a flow averaging about 100 standard cubic feet per minute (scfm). 
 
Beginning in January 2012, the methane gas produced from Watauga County’s closed landfill is 
being used to generate renewable energy, saving the County money on its electricity bills and 
providing a source of income to the County.  The County worked with partners from the Blue 
Ridge Electric Membership Corporation and the Appalachian Energy Center at Appalachian 
State University on a pilot landfill gas project to make use of the energy collected by the 
existing methane gas collection system.  Today, there are two modified automotive engine 
generators, with a combined nameplate generation capacity of 190 kW, installed at the landfill 
facility that uses methane gas from the landfill to produce electricity. 
 
The engines generate an estimated 900,000 kWh of electricity per year, which is enough 
electricity to power about 60 average North Carolina households.  Nearly all the power needs of 
the landfill facility will be met using green power from the project, and surplus electricity will be 
sold to Duke Energy Carolinas.  The County also will earn an additional income by selling 
renewable energy certificates to N.C. Green Power. 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

103



The projected annual gain to the County is $72,220 per year, including savings of about $30,000 
on electrical bills and sales of about $42,220 per year.  The rate of return considering the 
County's $245,000 investment in the project is approximately four years. The project also 
received nearly $41,000 in grant funds from the N.C. Department of Commerce's State Energy 
Office. 
 
COST ANALYSIS 
 
Watauga County finances its solid waste management program through a combination of 
household fees, tipping fees, and state tax reimbursements.  Every household is charged a user 
fee of $60.  Residents residing outside of the towns, except for Seven Devils residents, must pay 
a $25 green box user fee.  These fees allow households unlimited disposal at the convenience 
centers, and 2,000 pounds of disposal per year at the transfer station.  Customers are charged a 
tipping fee of $49 per ton for all waste brought to the transfer station exceeding the initial 
2,000 pounds.  LCID waste is accepted at the transfer station site at a rate of $49 per ton and 
land clearing (brush and yard waste) is $42 per ton.  Other revenues include sale of recyclables, 
sale of scrap metal, and reimbursements from the State Tire Tax and State White Goods Tax 
funds. 
 
Costs associated with the County's solid waste management programs include contracted 
expenses for transfer and disposal, operation of the LCID landfill, operation of the transfer 
station, and operation of the ten convenience centers. 
 
In FY 2010/2011, Watauga County’s total cost of solid waste management was $3,893,074.00.  
During the same period, the County collected fees and other revenues for solid waste 
management in the amount of $4,703,231.00.  Below is a breakout of costs and revenues for 
Watauga County's solid waste management program for FY 2010/2011. 
 
Revenues FY 2010/11 
 
Household and Green Box Fees $  2,354,699.00 
Tipping Fees $  1,463,209.00 
Sale of Recyclables $  503,680.00 
State Tire Tax Reimbursement $  48,772.00 
White Goods Tax Reimbursement $  16,726.00 
Interest Earned on Solid Waste Fund $  96,492.00 
Tire grants $  0 
Loan proceeds $  135,290.00 
Dumpsters $  6,353.00 
Schools $  16,842.00 
Residential Tire Disposal $  4370.00 
Sale of Fixed Assets $  31,605.00 
Sold Waste Disposal Tax $  25,193.00 

072412 BCC Meeting

104



 
Total Revenues: $4,703,231 
Transfer from General Fund:  $0.00 
 
 
Expenditures FY 2010/11 
 
Transfer/Disposal Fees to Waste Management $ 1,330,991 
Salaries and Administrative Cost $ 1,205,887 
Maintenance, Equipment, Depreciation Cost $ 234,755 
Capital Outlay $ 566,040 
Professional Services $ 65,556 
Debt Service $ 113,536 
Other Expense $ 376,309 
 
Total Expenditures: $ 3,893,074 
 
 
Watauga County 
 

 Solid Waste 
Collection 

Solid Waste 
Disposal 

Reduction, 
Reuse, & 
Recycling 

Mulching, 
Composting 

& Other 
Programs 

Total Cost 

Program Cost $2,324,417 $1,330,991 $113,418 $124,248 $3,893,074 
Cost per 
Household      

Cost per Ton $42.96 $47.22 $103.02 $25.73 $97.95 
Source: Watauga County Solid Waste Management Annual Report FY '10-11. 
 
 
Town of Boone 
 

 Solid Waste 
Collection 

Solid Waste 
Disposal 

Reduction, 
Reuse, & 
Recycling 

Mulching, 
Composting 

& Other 
Programs 

Total Cost 

Program Cost $71,133 $71,133 $166,843 $28,283 $337,392 
Cost per 

Household $28.46 $28.46 $66.74 $11.32 $134.90 

Cost per Ton      
Source: Town of Boone Solid Waste Management Annual Report FY '10/11. 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

105



 
Town of Blowing Rock 
 

 Solid Waste 
Collection 

Solid Waste 
Disposal 

Reduction, 
Reuse, & 
Recycling 

Mulching, 
Composting 

& Other 
Programs 

Total Cost 

Program Cost $187,539    $269,667 
Cost per 

Household 
    $132.84 

Cost per Ton     $129.90 
Source: Town of Blowing Rock Solid Waste Management Annual Report FY '10/11. 
 
 
Town of Beech Mountain 
 

 Solid Waste 
Collection 

Solid Waste 
Disposal 

Reduction, 
Reuse, & 
Recycling 

Mulching, 
Composting 

& Other 
Programs 

Total Cost 

Program Cost $253,270 $12,499   $265,769 
Cost per 

Household      

Cost per Ton     261.59 
Source:  Town of Beech Mountain Solid Waste Management Annual Report FY '10111. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Watauga County has adjusted the waste reduction goal through the next ten-year planning 
period.  The County has set a waste reduction goal of 2% by FY 2021/22.  Efforts will be focused 
mostly on residential and construction/demolition.  A 2% reduction goal requires the County to 
divert 14,495 tons from the waste stream by the year 2022.  The current per capita disposal 
rate is 0.77 tons per person annually which must be decreased to a 0.75 disposal rate in order 
to achieve the 2% waste reduction goal.  Tourism will make this goal harder to achieve because 
it generates large amounts of solid waste, and adds to the per capita rate, but does not reflect a 
population increase. 
 
The staff at the landfill site will continue to encourage building contractors to dispose of 
untreated wood at the mulching staging area.  Stumps, brush, and untreated wood will be 
ground up into mulch and made available to the public. 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

106



Collection at the County’s ten staffed convenient centers will largely remain the same. The 
construction of the new transfer station was completed in September of 2005.  The former 
transfer site will be converted into the main recycling center and will allow for a larger storage 
and processing area.  This renovation project will begin in the near future. 
 
Special wastes will continue to be collected on a regular or scheduled basis.  Tires, white goods, 
lead acid batteries, oil and oil filters will be collected at the transfer station.  Household 
hazardous waste will continue to be collected twice a year. 

072412 BCC Meeting

107



APPENDIX 

072412 BCC Meeting

108



J 
-

Watauga County Solid Waste Facilities 

• Convenience Center 

• Transfer Facility & Convenience Center 

CJ Municipalities 

I ' I I I I I I I 
a 1.25 2.5 5 Miles 

072412 BCC Meeting

109



Waste Stream Summary 

Element Tonnage Percent of Total 

Clear Glass 226 0.57 

Brown Glass 412 1.04 

Green Glass 174 0.44 
Mixed Plastic 234 0.59 
Steel Cans 54 0.14 

Aluminum 

Cans 
28 

0.07 

White Goods 111 0.28 

Other Metal 315 0.79 
Mixed Paper 664 1.67 
Cardboard 1,759 4.43 

Rigid Plastic 17 0.04 

Electronics 44 0.11 

Subtotal 4,038 

Grand Total 39,738 

072412 BCC Meeting

110



WASTE REDUCTION GOAL SHEET 
NC LOCAL GOVERNMENT TEN YEAR SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Local Government Name: _W_a_ta_u_,g._a_C_o_un_t,_y __________________ _ 

Previously established waste reduction goal: 4 % 
-----------------------------------

After considering your government's current and projected solid waste 
activities, resources, population, and economic growth have you reached 
your previously established goal? ~Yes 0No 

Establish a new waste reduction goal: 2 % ----------------------------------------

WASTE REDUCTION CALCULATION 
To provide 10 years of solid waste management planning, as per G.S. 130A-309.09A(b), waste 
reduction goals need to be updated. Use the following chart to determine the tonnage needed to 
be diverted from landfills in order to reach the new waste reduction goal. 

CALCULATION FY 2021-22 

1. Baseline year per capita disposal rate 
(FY 1991-1992 unless alternate approved by Section) 0.99 

2. Percent waste reduction goal 2% 

3. Targeted per capita disposal rate 
(Subtract line 2 from 1.0 and multiply result by line 1) 0.75 

4. Estimated population in the new waste reduction goal year 
(Available at Office of State Budget and Management website: 
Proiected Annual County Population Totals 20 I 0-20 19) 60,395 

5. Projected tonnage for disposal at baseline disposal rate 
(Multiply line 1 by line 4) 59,791 

6. Targeted annual tonnage for disposal 
(Multiply line 3 by line 4) 45,296 

7. Targeted annual tonnage to reduce 
(Subtract line 6 from line 5) 

14,495 
PopulatiOn Lmk: http://www.osbm.state.nc. us/ncosbmlfacts_ and_ figures/soctoeconomtc _data/populatiOn_ esttmates/demoglcpa20 1 Op.html 

WASTE REDUCTION PLAN 
Given the targeted annual tonnage amount to be reduced, explain how you plan to reach the goal: 

While the County has made significant progress in reaching the baseline year, Watauga County 
must continue this effort. Waste reduction goals will be difficult to consistently achieve over the 
long term due to many factors, including steady increases in tourism. Tourists generate large 
amounts of solid waste, and add to the per capita rate (because tourists do not represent an actual 
increase in the County's population); and steady increases in second-home construction--which 
generates substantial C&D waste, and adds to the per capita rate yet does not reflect a population 
increase either. 

1i2009 

072412 BCC Meeting

111



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

SOLID WASTE ORDINANCE 

ARTICLE I. AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE 

Be it ordered by the Watauga County Board of Commissioners that the 
following Ordinance and Regu l ations for the protection of the 
public health and safety are hereby adopted pursuant to authority 
granted by Chapter 153A, Sections 121, 122 , 123, 132 . 1 , 136 and 292 
of the North Carolina General Statutes, and shall, among other 
things: 

Provide for regulation in the most economically feasible, 
cost-effective and environmentally-safe manner, the 
storage, collection, transportation, separation, 
processing , recycling, and disposal of solid waste, to 
include hazardous waste (to the extent permitted by law) 
and medical waste, in order to protect the public health, 
safety and welfare; 

Enhance the environment for the citizens and the 
residents of Watauga County and recover resources which 
have the potential for further usefulness , all in 
accordance with the authority , purposes, policies and 
goals enunciated in the laws and r egulations of the State 
of North Carolina pertaining to solid waste management; 

Deter unlawful disposal of solid waste; 

Abate illegal dump sites; and 

Encourage reporting of littering and illegal dumping . 

ARTICLE II . JURISDICTION AND APPLICABILITY OF FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS 

Pursuant to NCGS 153A-122 , this ordinance shall apply to all areas 
of unincorporated Watauga County which are not within the-corporate 
limits of any municipalities . All municipalities and their 
respective corporate limits shall be exempted from the ordinance, 
unless they choose to adopt this ordinance or some form thereof. 

The intent of this ordinance is to promote and encourage proper and 
lawful solid waste management including but not limited to waste 
reduction , reuse , recycling, and disposal. 

The provisions of this Ordinance are intended, and sha l l be 
i nterpreted, to be consistent with and supplementary to the North 
Carolina General Statutes , State rules, and any county ordinance, 
regarding solid waste. To insure such intent and interpretation, 

072412 BCC Meeting

112



and in the event of ambiguity between the provisions of this 
Ordinance and other laws, rules, or ordinances, the stricter of the 
provisions shall apply. Any violation of such provisions shall also 
be a violation of this Ordinance . 

ARTICLE III . ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners authorizes the 
administration and enforcement of this Ordinance. The 
administration and enforcement of this ordinance shall be vested 
with the Sheriff ' s Department . 

ARTICLE IV. DEFINITIONS 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this 
Ordinance , shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this 
Article , except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning : 

1 . Board : Board of Commissioners of Watauga County. 

2. Bulky waste : Large man-made i terns of solid waste such as 
furniture , large auto parts, and other oversized wastes whose large 
size precludes or complicates their handling by normal solid waste 
collection, processing , or disposal methods. 

3. Collection : The act of removing solid waste (or materials that 
have been separated for the purpose of recycling) to a transfer 
station, processing facility, or disposal facility. 

4. Commercial solid waste: All types of solid waste generated by 
stores, offices , restaurants, warehouses, and other 
non-manufacturing activities , excluding residential and industrial 
waste; provided, that the definition of commercial solid waste is 
also applicable to places of residence having t hree or more 
dwelling units such as apartment buildings and mobile home courts. 

5 . Commercial Solid Waste Collector : Any person, firm, 
corporation, or other entity , engaged in whole or part , in the 
collection, transportation , delivery , or disposal of solid waste 
generated within the service area, including any such entity 
engaged in such activities with respect to solid waste generated by 
others for profit and/or hire. 

6. Construction and Demolition Waste : Solid waste resulting 
solely from construction, remodeling , repair, or demolition 
operations on buildings , or other structures , but does not include 
inert debris, land-clearing debris , yard debris, brick, 
uncontaminated soil, sand, gravel , rock, concrete , or concrete 
block . 

7. Department : The Department of Environment and Natural 
Resources. 

072412 BCC Meeting

113



8. Disposal: Th e discharge, deposit , i n jection, dumping , 
spilling , leaking or placing of any solid waste into or on any l and 
or water so that t h e solid waste or any const ituent pa r t of t h e 
solid was t e may enter the environment or be emit t ed into the air or 
discharged into any waters , i ncluding ground waters . 

9 . Division : The Director of t he Division of Solid Waste 
Management of the North Ca r o l ina Department of Environment and 
Natural Resources , or t h e Director ' s authorized representative . 

10 . En forceme nt Off icer : A deputy employed by the Watauga County 
Sheriff' s Department as appointed by the Watauga County Sheriff 
whose du t ies primar i ly are t h e enforcement of this ordinance . 

1 1. Farmin g : Act i viti e s related or incidental to production of 
crops , f r uits , vegetabl es , ornamental and flowering plants , dairy , 
livestock , poultry, and al l other forms of agricu l tural products 
havi ng a domestic or foreign market. 

12 . Garb age: All putrescible waste , including animal offal and 
carcasses , and recognizable industrial by- products , but excl uding 
sewage and human waste . 

13 . Hazardous waste: A solid waste , or combination of solid 
wastes , which because of its quantity , concentration or physical , 
chemical o r i n fectious characteristics may : 

a . Cause or significantly contribute to an increase in 
mortality or an i ncrease i n serious irreversible or incapacitating 
reversib le illness ; or 

b. Pose a substantial present or potential hazard to human 
hea l t h or the environment when improperly treated, stored, 
transported , disposed of or otherwi se managed . 

Provided , however , that nothin g herein shal l be construed to 
authorize the County to regulate hazardous waste in any manner 
p r ohibi ted by or pre-empted by the applicable North Carolina 
Genera l Statutes and State rules and regulations. 

14. Industr i al process was t e : Solid waste resulting from an 
indust ria l or manufacturing process which may be disposed of at the 
county landfill after demonstrating its non-hazardous status 
t h rough analysis , or by other means . Includes , but is not limit ed 
to sandbl asting grit , contaminated food products , ash and dust . 

-3-

072412 BCC Meeting

114



15 . Industrial solid waste : Solid waste generated by manufacturing 
or industrial processes that is not hazardous waste . 

16 . Inert debris : Solid waste , which consists solely of material 
that , is virtually inert and that is likely to retain its physical 
and chemical structure under expected conditions of disposal . 

17 . Infectious waste: Solid waste capable of producing an 
i nfectious disease . The types of waste designated as infectious 
are : microbiological waste , pathological waste, blood products and 
sharps . 

18 . Institutional Solid Waste : Solid waste generated by 
educational , correctional, a nd other institutional facilities . 

19 . Land-clearing debris: Solid waste which is generated solely 
from land-clearing activities . 

20. Landfill : A disposal facility or part of a disposal facility 
where waste is placed in or on land and which is not a land 
treatment facility , a surface impoundment, an injection well, a 
hazardous waste long- term storage facility or a surface storage 
f acility . 

21 . Medical waste : Any solid waste which is generated in the 
diagnosis, treatment , or immunization of human beings or animals , 
in research pertaining thereto , or in the production or testing of 
biologicals , but does not include any hazardous waste identified or 
listed pursuant to this Ordinance , radioactive waste, or household 
waste as def i ned in 40 CFR §261/4 (b) (1) in effect on 1 July 1989 , 
or those substances excluded from the definition of " solid waste " 
i n this Ordinance . 

22 . Municipal solid waste : Any solid waste resulting from the 
operation of residential, commercial, industrial, governmental, or 
institutional establishments that would normally be collected, 
processed and disposed of through a public or private solid waste 
management service . Municipal solid waste does not include 
hazardous waste , sludge, or industrial waste managed in a solid 
waste management facility owned and operated by the generator of 
the industrial waste for management of that waste , or solid waste 
from mining or agricultural operations. 

23. Open dump : Any facility or site where solid waste is disposed 
of that is not a sanitary landfill and that is not a facility for 
the disposal of hazardous waste , specifically including a solid 
waste disposal site that does not have a permit, and/or does not 
comply with the rules set forth in the North Carolina Solid Waste 

- 4-

072412 BCC Meeting

115



Management Rules, 15A N.C.A.C . 13b. 

24. Pathological waste: Human tissues, organs, and body parts, and 
the carcasses and body parts of any animals that were known to have 
been exposed to pathogens that are potentially dangerous to humans 
during research , were used in the production of biologicals or in 
vivo testing of pharmaceuticals , or that died with a known or 
suspected disease transmissible to humans . 

"25 . Person : Any individual , firm, 
association, p artnership , unit of local 
federa l agency or other legal entity . 

corporat i on , company, 
government, State agency , 

26. Premises: A definite portion of real estate including its 
appurtenance , a building , or part of a building. 

27. Processing : Any technique designed to change the physical , 
chemical , or biological character or composition of any solid waste 
so as to render it safe for transport; amendable to recovery, 
storage or recycling; safe for disposal; or reduced in volume or 
concentration . 

28 . Putrescible: Solid waste capable of being d ecomposed by 
microorganisms with sufficient rapidity as to cause nuisances from 
odors and gases , such as kitchen wastes , offal , and animal 
carcasses . 

2 9. Radioactive waste : Wast e containing any material , whether 
solid, liquid, or gas that emits ionizing radiation spontaneously. 

30 . Recyclable material: Those materia l s which are capable of 
being recycled and which would otherwise be processed or disposed 
of as solid waste . 

31. Recycling : Any process by which solid waste, or rna terials 
which would otherwise become solid waste, are collected, separated, 
or processed , and reused or returned to the use in the form of raw 
materials or products. 

32 . Refuse: All nonputrescible wastes . Solid waste, other than 
garbage and ashes , from r es idences , commercial establishments, and 
institutions. 

33. Regula t ed medical waste: Blood and body fluids in individual 
containers i n vol umes greater than 20ml , microbiological waste , and 
pathological waste that has not been treated pursuant to state 
rul es . 

-5-

072412 BCC Meeting

116



34. Resident i al waste : Solid waste origi nating from private 
households (private single - family homes and apartments , 
condominiums , etc . , not institutional residential facilities) . 
Solid waste from a place of residences having three or more 
dwelling units is defined as commercial solid waste . 

35 . Sanitary Landfill : A 
land in sani t ary manner 
sanitary l andfill adopted 
in NCGS §130A- 290 . 

facility for disposal of solid waste on 
in accordance with rules concerning 

u nder Article 9 Chapter 130A as defined 

36 . Scrap tire : (Whole scrap tires are banned from disposal at the 
l andfill) A tire that is no longer sui table for its original, 
intended purpose because of wear , damage , or defect. 

37 . Sharps : Needles , syringes , and scalpel blades . 

38 . Sludge: Any solid, semisolid, or liquid waste generated from a 
municipal , commercial, institutional , or industrial wastewater 
treatment plant , or air pollution control facility, or any other 
waste having similar characteristics and effects. 

39 . Solid Was t e: Any hazardous or non- hazardous garbage , refuse or 
sludge from a waste treatment plant , water supply treatment plant 
or air pollution control facility , domestic sewage and sludges 
generated by the treatment thereof in sanitary sewage collection , 
treatment and disposal systems , and other material that is either 
discarded or is being accumulated, stored or treated prior to being 
discarded, or has served its original intended use and is generally 
d i scarded , including solid, liquid , semisolid or contai ned gaseous 
material resultin g from indus t rial , institutional , commercial and 
agricultural operations , and from community activities . Solid waste 
does not include : 

a . Fecal waste from fowls and animals other t han humans . 

b . Solid or dissolved material in : 

1 . Domestic sewage and sludge generated by 
treatment thereof in sanitary sewage collection , 
treatment and disposal systems which are designed 
to discharge effluents to the surface waters . 

2 . Irrigation return flows. 

3 . Wastewater discharges and the sludges incidental 
to and generated by treatment which are po i nt 
sources subject to permits granted under Sect i on 

- 6-

072412 BCC Meeting

117



402 of the Water Pol l ution Control Act , as amended 
(P.L. 92-500 ), and pe rmits granted under G. S. 
143-215.1 by the Environmental Management 
Commi ssion . However , any sludge that meet the 
criter i a for hazardous waste under RCRA shall also 
be a solid waste for t he purposes of this Article. 

c . Oils and other liquid hydrocarbons controlled under Article 
21A of Chapter 143 of the General Statute s . However , any oils or 
othe r liquid hydrocarbons that meet the criteria for hazar dous 
waste under RCRA shall also be a solid waste for the purposes of 
this Ar t ic l e . 

d . Any source , special nuclear or byproduct material as 
defined by the At omic Energy Act of 1954 , as amended (42 U. S .C. 
§20 11). 

e . Minin g refuse covered by t he North Caro l ina Mining Act , 
G.S. 74 - 46 through 74 - 68 and regulated by the North Carolina Mining 
Commission (as defined under G.S. 143B- 290) . However, any specific 
mining waste that meets t he criteria for hazardous waste under RCRA 
shall a l so be a solid waste for the purposes of this Article . 

f . Recyc l ab l e mater i al. 

g. Hazardous waste excluded pursuant to G. S. 153A-136 and G. S . 
153A- 294 . 

40 . Solid Waste Rules: The regulations governing sol id waste 
management adopted by the Solid Waste Section of the Department of 
Environment a nd Natural Resources in accordance with EPA guidelines 
and other Federal Regulations. 

41 . Used oil : any oil which has been refined from crude oil or 
synthetic oil and, as a result of use , storage, or handl ing , has 
become unsuitabl e for its ori ginal purpose. 

42. White goods : I ncludes refrigerators , ranges , water heaters , 
freezers , unit air conditioners , washing machines , dishwashers , 
c l othes dryers , and other similar domestic and commercial large 
app l iances. 

43. The definitions se t forth in NCGS §130A-290 which are not 
expressly set forth in this ordinance shall appl y to and are hereby 
incorporated herein by reference t o this ordinance . 

ARTICLE V. STORAGE AND DISPOSAL 

- 7-

072412 BCC Meeting

118



1. No person, owner, occupant, tenant, or lessee of any property 
may deposit , store or permit to accumulate any solid waste on 
property owned or occupied by the person, owner, occupant, tenant, 
or lessee that is not stored or disposed of as required by this 
Ordinance. 

2. The owner , occupant, tenant , or lessee of any property shall 
remove or cause to be removed all solid waste from his property at 
such reasonable intervals as will prevent a nuisance from arising 
which causes or . creates the likelihood of injury to the health, 
safety, or welfare of another person or the likelihood of injury to 
adjoining property. 

3 . Garbage and refuse shall be stored and/or sorted in a manner 
that will resist harborage to rodents and vermin and will not 
create a fire hazard. 

4 . No owner , occupant, tenant, or lessee of any building or 
dwelling may place or leave, or cause to be placed or left , outside 
the building or dwelling any bulky waste for longer than ninety 
(90) days. Provided that the storage of junk vehicles in 
compliance with other Watauga County Ordinances shall not 
constitute a violation of this Solid Waste Management Ordinance . 

5. No owner , occupant, tenant , or lessee of any building or 
dwelling may leave outside the building or dwelling, in a place 
accessible to children, any abandoned or unattended icebox, 
refrigerator , freezer, or other item or piece of equipment that has 
a door or cover that cannot be opened from the inside, without 
first removing the door . 

6 . Solid waste may be disposed of only in one of the following 
ways : 

(a) In a landfill , transfer facility , or other disposal 
facility duly authorized and permitted by the Division; 

(b) In an incinerator that has obtained and possesses all 
required local, state and federal control permits; 

(c) By any other method, including recycli ng and resource 
recovery, that has been approved by the Division ; 

(d) At a container-site or convenience center operated by 
Watauga County , and transported to a landfill or other disposal 
facility duly authorized and permitted by the Division; or 

- 8-

072412 BCC Meeting

119



(e) As otherwise authorized by the Watauga County Solid Waste 
Operations Ordinance . 

7 . No person may discard, dispose of , l eave , or dump any solid 
waste on or along any street or Highway or on public or private 
property unles s such solid waste is place d in a receptacle or at 
locations properly permitted for the deposit of solid waste . 

8 . No person s hall throw, scatter , spil l , place , cause , or allow 
to be blown , scattered, spilled , thrown or placed , or otherwise 
dispose of any litter upon any public property or private property 
not owned by said violator within Watauga Count y or into the waters 
of Watauga County including , but not limi ted to , upon any public 
highway , public park, lake , river , stream, campground, forest land, 
recreational area , mobile home park , highway, road , street or 
alley ; the occurrence of any of the foregoing acts resulting from 
transporting solid waste in a vehicle s hal l constitute a violation. 

9. No person shall intentionally and wi llfully dump or deposit 
any solid waste material on the property owned by the violator or 
the propert y of a nother with or without the written consent of the 
property owner whi ch is inconsisten t with proper and l awful solid 
waste management a nd disp osal practices . 

10. No person shal l burn solid waste except ns permitted by 
existing f i re codes and state laws . 

11. Nothing in this Ordinance is intended to authorize the 
disposal of solid waste in any manner prohibited by federal or 
state laws or regul ations. 

12. Construct i on and Demolition waste as defined herein must only 
be disposed of at disposal sites approved and permitted by the 
Division. 

13 . Regu l ated medical , 
disposed of according 
Division . 

hazardous , and radioactive waste must be 
to written procedures approved by the 

14 . All sharps shall be placed in a sealed, puncture-proof 
container prior to disposal . 

15. A person operating or having operated an open dump for 
disposal of solid waste or a person who owns land on which such an 
open dump is or has been operating shall immediately close the site 
in accordance with 15A NCAC 138 § . 0502 . 

16 . No person shall bury solid waste in earth or submerge solid 

- 9-

072412 BCC Meeting

120



waste in water unless expressly permitted by this Ordinance or 
applicable federal and state law and regulations. 

17. Pursuant to G.S . 153A-136 and G.S . 153A-294 , no person shall 
dispose of hazardous waste within any Watauga County solid waste 
disposal facility . 

ARTICLE VI . DEFINITION AND ABATEMENT OF SOLID WASTE NUISANCES 

1. By the authority of the provisions of N.C. Gen. Stat . §l53A-140 
of the North Carolina General Statutes , the storage , accumulation 
or presence of solid waste on public or private property in the 
area of jurisdiction of this Ordinance which is: 

(a) A breeding ground or harbor for mosquitoes or 
other insects , snakes, rats, or other pests; 
or 

(b) A point of collection for pools or ponds of 
water ; or 

(c) A point of concentration of gaso line, oil , or 
other flammable , toxic or explosive materials; 
or 

(d) So located that there is a danger of falling, 
sliding or turning over ; or 

(e) A source of danger for children through 
entrapment in areas of confinement that cannot 
be opened from the inside or from exposed 
surfaces or metal, glass , or other rigid 
materials 

is hereby proclaimed and declared to be unlawful and a public 
nuisance. Such public nuisance shall be subject to abatement as 
provided in this Ordinance . 

2. Upon reasonable cause to believe that a public nuisance as 
defined above exists , the Enforcement Officer or his designee, and 
upon not less than ten (10) days ' notice to the occupant and owner 
of the property on which the alleged nuisance is located, shall 
make a determination of whether or not such nuisance does, in fact , 
exist . If the Enforcement Officer makes a determination that a 
public nuisance exists, he shall enter and serve upon the owner and 
occupant an order to remove, abate or remedy the nuisance within a 
reasonable period of time , but not more than ninety (90) days . Such 

- 10-

072412 BCC Meeting

121



order may be appea l ed by the owner o r occupant to the Board of 
County Commissioners as provided in ARTICLE VII of this ordinance . 

3 . Upon failu r e of the owner or occupant of the property, or of 
the person responsible for placing such solid waste on the property 
to remove , abate or remedy the nuisance within the period the 
officer has allowed , pursuant to N.C. General Statute 153A-140 an 
Enforcement Officer shall remove , abate or remedy the nuisance as 
provided i n the order and charge the cost thereof to the owner and 
occupant . I f s u ch expense is not paid by the owner or occupant 
within ten (10) business days , it shall be a lien upon the land or 
on premises where the nuisance arose and sha l l be collected as 
unpaid taxes. 

ARTICLE VII. ENFORCEMENT MEASURES AND REMEDIES 

The Watauga County Sheriff shall designate the En forcement 
Office r (s) from the Sheriff ' s Department sworn staff , who shall 
have t h e authority and duty to perform inspections , issue 
citations, assess penalties and take enforcement actions . Also , the 
other department s of the County may accompany the Enforcement 
Officer to assist in administration and e nforcement. 

Watauga County may exercise remedies for v i olation of any provision 
of this ordinance as al l owed and a u thorized by the North Caro lina 
General Statutes , including but not limited to civil penalties , 
equitabl e remedies , and criminal prosecution . 

In addi tion , whenever the Enforcement Officer rece i ves a proper , 
non-anonymous , written complaint alleging a violation of t his 
ordinance , h e shall investigate the complaint, take whatever action 
is warranted (including , in his or her discretion, any appropriate 
informal measures deemed helpful toward procuring compl iance with 
thi s Ordinance) . The Enforcement Officer sha l l i nform the 
compla inant in writing what actions have been or will be taken . 

A warn ing may b e issued by the Enforcement Officer without fine 
when t he officer i s of the opinion that a violation of this 
ordinance may be remedied without the necessity of prosecution; 
h owever, a warning citation may not be issued in the case where 
public h ealth a nd/ o r safety are endangered. 

Waiver of enforcement by the county of any provision of this 
Ordi nance shal l not prejudice the enforcement of remaining portions 
of this Ordinance . 

1. Civil Enforcement and Penalties: 

-11-

072412 BCC Meeting

122



(A.) Notice of violation. The Enforcement Officer may issue a 
notice of violation to any person who fails to comply with any 
provision of this Ordinance. The notice of violation shall contain 
a description of the violation, the date of inspection, a 
description of the action necessary for correction of the violation 
and the date (no more than ten (10) business days from the date of 
the notice) that compliance is required . The notice shall also 
specify the amount of civil penalty that may be imposed should the 
violator fail to take corrective action within the time frame set 
forth for compliance with the ordinance . The notice shall be hand 
delivered or mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt 
requested, to the person or persons alleged to be in non
compliance . The Enforcement Officer shall sign a statement for his 
file of the date , time and manner of deli very. The failure to 
comply with the notice of violation by taking corrective action may 
result in any of the civil or criminal remedies set forth in this 
section. 

(B . ) Civil penalties and remedies . 
penalties are as follows: 

Civil remedies and 

(1.) Pursuant to the provisions of G. S . 153A-
123(a), any person violating any provision of 
this Ordinance is subject to a civil penalty 
in the amount of $100 . 00 . Each day said 
condition continues to exist shall constitute 
a separate and distinct violation. 

(2 . ) Pursuant to G. S. 153A- 123(c), the county 
may file a civil action to recover the civil 
penalty provided for in Section F subsection 
(b) (1) of this section, if the offender does 
not pay the penalty within the prescribed 
period as set forth in the notice of 
violation. 

(3 . ) Pursuant to G. S. 153A-123( d), the county 
may seek any appropriate equitable relief that 
it deems necessary to ensure the health, 
safety and welfare of the c i tizens or the 
natural resources of the county. 

(4 . ) Pursuant to G. S . 153A- 123(a) , the county 
may seek an injunction when the non- compliance 
or violation is creating an imminent hazard to 
the health, safety and welfare of the public . 

-12-

072412 BCC Meeting

123



(C.) Appeal. Any person wh o receives a notice of violation , 
or order to remove , abate , or remedy a nuisance may, within ten 
business days of the day the notice was received, submit a written 
appeal to the Board of County Commissioners . The appeal notice 
shall specifically state the reasons for the appeal with a copy of 
the notice of violation attached thereto. The County Manager shall 
schedule a hearing for the next regular Board of County 
Commissioner ' s meeting, and notify the appellant , and the Board of 
County Commissioners upon the hearing sha l l render a decision 
upholding , denying or modifying the notice of violation. Accrual 
and imposition of the civil penalties shall be stayed pending the 
appeal. However , there wil l be no stay for equitable remedies 
available to the County. I f the decision of the Solid Waste 
Enforcement Officer is affi r med , accrual and imposition shall 
resume. Any appeal not filed within ten (10) business days of the 
day notice was received shall be considered not timely . 

The Board of Commissioners may consider hardship as basis for 
extending the period for compliance up to six (6) months. In no 
case shall the Board indefinitely excuse compliance. An extension 
may be granted upon the appellant meeting two (2)of the four (4) 
following criteria: 

1. appe l lant is at least sixty-five (65) years of age ; 
2. health problems documented by appellant's medical record 

which substantially affect the appellant's ability to 
comply with the ordina nce; 

3 . severe weather that prevents appellant from complying 
within the original time frame; 

4. taxable income below fifty percent (50%) of the County's 
current median income , as determined by the US 
Department of Housing and Urban Development , documented 
by appe l lant ' s latest tax return. 

(D.) Appeals of Board Actions . Every decision of the Board 
shall be subject to review at the instance of any aggrieved 
party in the Superior Court by proceedings in the nature of a 
peti t ion for writ of certiorari . Such proceedings in the 
Superior Court s hall be initiated within thirty (30) days of 
the date the decision i s approved in the Board' s minutes . 
Appeals not f i led within this thirty (30) day period a r e not 
timely . The Superior Court is authorized to stay enforcement 
of this ordinance during the pendency of an appeal from the 
decision of the Board of Commissioners upon a hearing and the 
posting of a bond sufficient to the Court which will 
adequately protect the interests of the County . 

2 . Criminal Penalty : Any violation of any provision of this 

-13-

072412 BCC Meeting

124



ordinance sha l l be a Class 3 misdemeanor , subject to a five hundred 
dollar (500 . 00) fine , and punishabl e pursuant to NCGS §153A-123 and 
N.C . G. S . 14-4 . Each day ' s continuing violation shall be a separate 
and distinct off ense. 

3 . This ordinance may also be enforced by equitable remedies , and 
any unlawful condition which may be in v i olation of this ordinance 
may be abate d b y mandatory or prohibitory inj unction in accordance 
with N. C. G. S . §153A- 123 . 

ARTICLE VIII . EXEMPTION FOR FARMING 

This ordinance shall not regulate 
products or by- products of farming , 
equipment used in farming , so long as 
disposal of such is not made illegal 
regulation . 

ARTICLE IX . CHANGES IN STATE LAW 

or be applied to regulate 
or materials, supplies or 
the generation, handl ing or 
by other law, ordinance or 

Should N.C . G. S . §153A- 132 . 1 , N. C . G. S . §153A- 136, and N. C.G . S . 
§153A-292 or any section of the General Statutes of North Carolina 
incorporated here i n by reference or otherwise referred to herein be 
change or amended, or should such statutes require or mandate a 
difference procedure or change or i mpose new, different or 
additional requirements , then, in that event , this ordinance shall 
be deemed to have been amended without further action to have 
complied with such new additional or amended requirements . 

ARTICLE X. SEVERABILITY 

If any Section, subsection , sentence , phrase or portion of this 
ordinance is f or any reason inval i d or unconstitutional as 
determined by a Court of competent jurisdiction , such decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remain i n g portions of this 
ordinance . 

ARTICLE XI . CONFLICT WITH OTHER ORDINANCES 

Whenever the provisions of this ordinance and any other ordinance 
impose overlapping or contradictory regulations, the ordinance 
which is more restrictive or imposes higher standards or 
requirements shall be controlling . 

- 14 -

072412 BCC Meeting

125



ARTICLE XII. EFFECTIVE DATE 

This ordinance as amended shall become effective on the 1st day of 
July , 2006 . 

ADOPTED this the 27th day of June , 2006. 

Watauga County ' s Ordinance Prohibiting Throwing or Depositing Trash 
on Public or Private Property , adopted 3 May 1971 and Article VI of 
the Watauga County Solid Waste Ordinance made effective 21 December 
1993 are hereby abolished and superceded . 

ATTEST: 

Anita J . Fogle , Cl erk to Lhe Board 

APPROVED AS TO FORM : 

Anthony di Santi , County Attorney 

- 15-

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

by: 
James Deal , Jr. , Ch airman 

072412 BCC Meeting

126



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Request to Surplus Property Acquired from the New River Service Authority   
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The County recently acquired two properties from the foreclosure of the New River Service 
Authority.  The New River Service Authority (NRSA) approved a resolution requesting a Future 
Advance Deed of Trust from the County in September of 2011.  The Deed of Trust was secured 
by two tracts including land and buildings located in Watauga County. The amount secured by 
the Deed of Trust was 50% of the total tax value of the two tracts bringing the maximum amount 
available for allocation to $477,600.  NRSA was unable to repay the loan and thus the properties 
were offered at public sale in which the County was the highest bidder in the amount of 
$454,000. 
 
The Oak Street property is valued at $371,200 (Land=$201,300, Building=$169,900) and the 
Shadowline property is valued at $584,200 (Land=$386,000, Building=$198,200).  Should the 
Board wish to sell the properties, the first step would be to surplus the properties.  Once that is 
completed, a decision to sell the properties individually or together must be made.  Finally, the 
Board needs to determine whether or not to hire a real estate agent or utilize GovDeals as was 
previously done.  Should the Board wish to utilize GovDeals, the attached resolution would need 
to be adopted. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board on the disposal of the properties.   
 
  

072412 BCC Meeting

127



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF HARDIN ADDITION LOT 16 AND A TRACT OF THE MACK D. 
BROWN AND FRED C. MILLER, JR. PROPERTY 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Watauga owns two tracts of land, one lot located at the 
intersection of Oak Street and Pine Street in the Town of Boone, NC, Parcel ID 2910161829000 
in the Watauga County tax maps and a 0.596 acre tract located on the Southwest side of the 
State Farm Road and on the Northwest side of the Shadowline Road in the Town of Boone, NC, 
Parcel ID 2910534544000 in the Watauga County tax maps; and 
 
 WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 153A-176 permits a County to dispose of 
any real or personal property belonging to it according to the procedures prescribed in Chapter 
160A, Article 12; and  
 
 WHEREAS, 153A-176 permits the County to sell real property by electronic 
advertisement and public auction; and 
 
 WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute 160A-270(c) provides that auctions of real 
property may be conducted electronically if the County authorizes the establishment of an 
electronic auction procedure or authorizes the use of existing private or public electronic 
auction services; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the County has passed a Resolution authorizing the establishment of an 
electronic auction procedure and the use of existing public and private electronic auction 
services; and  
 
 WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute 160A-270(c) provides that notice of all 
electronic sales may be published solely by electronic means if that exclusive method of 
publication is approved by the governing board of the political subdivision; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Board of Commissioners has adopted a Resolution for the exclusive 
method of publication being by electronic means. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for the County of 
Watauga as follows: 
 

1.  The Watauga County Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the sale of the 
following described lot and tract of land by existing private electronic auction 
services at www.govdeals.com: 

 
 
 
 

DRAFT 

072412 BCC Meeting

128



 
 

Being all of Lot 16 of the Hardin Addition to the Town of Boone, and being 
the property as described in Deed recorded in Book 99 at page 49 of the 
Watauga County Public Registry; and a tract of land 

Being all of the 0.596 acre tract of the Mack D. Brown and Fred C. Miller, Jr. 
property lying on the Southwest side of the State Farm Road and on the 
Northwest side of the Shadowline Road and being more particularly 
described as follows: BEGINNING on an iron stake set in the Mack" D. Brown-
Fred C. Miller, Jr. and Shadowline, Inc. line, (said beginning point being 
located North 78° 24' West 44.27 feet from the Northwest corner of an office 
building on the property being described; South 17° 07' West 45.02 feet from 
the Southwest corner of a building on the adjoining property of Mack D. 
Brown and Fred C. Miller, Jr.; and South 30° 17' East 79.77 feet from an iron 
found, the Mack D. Brown et al corner); thence from the beginning and with 
a new line through the Mack D. Brown and Fred C. Miller, Jr. property North 
58° 12' East 33.66 feet to a nail in the edge of a paved parking lot; thence 
with the center of a traffic lane in said parking lot and continuing with a new 
line through the Mack D. Brown and Fred C. Miller, Jr. property North 58° 12' 
East 158.88 feet to a nail in the pavement; thence continuing with said new 
line North 58° 12' East 23.79 feet to an iron stake in the West margin of the 
State Farm Road; thence with the margin of said road South 48° 34' East 
97.82 feet to a nail and washer in the edge of the pavement of Shadowline 
Drive; thence with the North side of Shadowline Drive South 50° 13' West 
250.00 feet to an iron stake, the corner to the Shadowline, Inc. property; 
thence with the Shadowline, Inc. property; thence with the Shadowline, Inc. 
line North 30° 27' West 128.40 feet to the BEGINNING containing 0.596 acre 
by D.M.D. as shown on a plat dated March 27,1984 by Walter H. Burkett, RLS 
No. L-1209 and being Plat #BS-8566 and entitled "Property of Fred Cecil 
Miller and Mack D. Brown to be conveyed to New River Mental Health 
Prevention Foundation. 

2. The County will accept bids for the property until 3:00 p.m. Tuesday, August 28, 
2012.   

 
3. 3:00 P.M. on Tuesday, August 28, 2012 is the deadline for bidding.  The record of 

bids shall be reported to the Board of Commissioners at their regular meeting on 
Tuesday, September 4, 2012. 

 
4. The minimum opening bid for Lot 16 of the Hardin Addition to the Town of Boone 

shall be $185,600 and $292,100 for the 0.596 tract of land located at 377 
Shadowline Drive. 

 
5. The Board of Commissioners will determine the highest responsible bidder for the 

property and has discretion to award the bid.   
 
6. To be responsible, a bid deposit of five percent (5%) of the amount of the bid must 

be paid within five business days after close of auction.  The deposit of the bidder to 
whom the award is made will be held until the sale of the property is closed; if that 
bidder refuses at any time to close the sale, the deposit will be forfeited to the 
County.  Final payment and close of sale must be accomplished within 60 days after 
close of auction. Bidder is responsible for all property survey, deed preparation and 
recording costs associated with the deed transfer. 

 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

129



 
 
7. In addition, to be responsible, a bidder must be current on payment of all property 

taxes owed to the county. 
 
8. The County reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time and 

the right to reject all bids.   
  
9. This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General 

Statutes 153A-176, 160A-266, and 160A-270. 
 
 
 ADOPTED this the 24th day of July, 2012. 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
       Watauga County Board of Commissioners   
      
ATTEST: 
  
_____________________________(SEAL)  
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board   
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

130



 
AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B. Boards and Commissions 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Region D Development Corporation is a Certified Development Company that assists the 
US Small Business Administration in delivering small business loans to the region.  They also 
assist in marketing and packaging loans for small businesses throughout the region.  Per their 
bylaws, each county is required to appoint four persons to serve as members of the Development 
Corporation in May of each year.  Representative categories are local government (1), private 
lending institution (1), and community organization or a business organization (2).  Following is 
a list of current appointees:  Mr. Fowler Cooper (Local Government); Mr. Brian Crutchfield 
(Community Organization); Mr. Jim Furman (Business Organization); and Mr. Brian Riggins 
(Private Lending Institution).  Mr. Cooper is no longer eligible as a local government 
representative.  The government representative may come from any local government in the 
County and be elected or appointed. Therefore, staff recommends John Spear, Planning and 
Inspections Department, to fill Mr. Cooper’s vacancy.  The Board may wish to accept staff’s 
recommendation or provide an alternate. 
 
The above is a second reading with the exception of the staff recommendation of Mr. John Spear 
which is a first reading.  
 
Ms. Julie Wiggins, Regional Ombudsman with the High Country Council of Governments, has 
requested that Ms. Evelina Idol be considered for reappointment to the Watauga County Adult 
Care Home and Community Advisory Committee.  Ms. Idol has indicated that she is willing to 
continue to serve, if so appointed.  Her current term expired June 17, 2012. 
 
The above is a first reading; however, due to the term having already expired, you may wish to 
waive your second reading and make an appointment at this time. 
 
  

072412 BCC Meeting

131



072412 BCC Meeting

132



072412 BCC Meeting

133



072412 BCC Meeting

134



072412 BCC Meeting

135



Blank Page 
 
 

072412 BCC Meeting

136



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

C. Announcements 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The County recently closed on the refinancing of the high school loan.  The County netted a total 
savings of $2.7 million with an average annual savings of $170,000.   
 
The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners' (NCACC) 105th Annual Conference 
is scheduled for August 16-18, 2012, in Wake County.  If you plan to attend, please inform Anita 
so that she may RSVP on your behalf. 
 
The High Country Council of Governments’ Annual Banquet is scheduled for Friday, September 
7, 2012, at Linville Ridge.  If you wish to attend, please notify Anita prior to August 24 so she 
may assist in the registration. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

072412 BCC Meeting

137



072412 BCC Meeting

138



072412 BCC Meeting

139



072412 BCC Meeting

140



072412 BCC Meeting

141



072412 BCC Meeting

142



072412 BCC Meeting

143



072412 BCC Meeting

144



072412 BCC Meeting

145



072412 BCC Meeting

146



072412 BCC Meeting

147



072412 BCC Meeting

148



072412 BCC Meeting

149



072412 BCC Meeting

150



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 12: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 13: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Personnel Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6) 

072412 BCC Meeting

151


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes:
	Approval of the July 24, 2012 Agenda
	Sheriff’s Office Proposed Legal Services Contract Renewal with Smith, Rodgers & Strickland (SR&S)
	Hunger and Health Coalition Paving Request
	Planning and Inspection Matters
	A.  Proposed NC Rural Center Grant Application
	B.  CDBG SSHP Matters - Public Hearing Requests
	1. & 2.  Public Hearing Requests 
	3.  2012 Program Proposed Committee Appointments 


	Tax Matters
	A.  Monthly Collections Report
	B.  Refunds & Releases

	Budget Amendments
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on the County’s Solid Waste Management Plan Update
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Request to Surplus Property Acquired from the New River Service Authority
	B.  Boards & Commissions
	C.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session
	072412 Agenda.pdf
	WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
	COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM




